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Mirandaland Game Objectives and Rules

The Game of Mirandaland has two objectives for the players. One objective is to win the game. Unlike monopoly, players don’t pick a card and randomly get sent to jail. Instead, like many of the criminal defendant’s that defense attorneys represent, Mirandaland players start out in jail, and the goal is to get your game piece, otherwise know as your client,  out of jail, and to the Suppression City game spot - the Supreme Court.  In real life, defense lawyers win cases by getting motions to suppress granted, and in Mirandaland a player wins the game by getting to Suppression City, which is a play on words for winning a motion to suppress your client’s statements for a violation of his Miranda Rights, or of his Fourteenth Amendment Right to not have involuntary statements used against him.  More important than the objective of getting to Suppression City is the overriding object of the game, which is for every player to learn as much as they can about “Voluntariness Law” and “Miranda Law.” 

In Mirandland, the players, otherwise known as the lawyers,  learn about “Voluntariness Law” and “Miranda Law” by moving around a game board clockwise (the Voluntariness route or counter clockwise (the Miranda route) with the goal of getting to the Suppression City game spot. At the start of the game players take turns spinning a game spinner. The order in which they spin is determined by the game piece assigned to them. Those players on the defense side of Miranda law (Earl Warren, John Flynn, Ernesto Miranda, Thurgood Marshall, Sonia Sotomayor, and Elana Kagan) receive a small dose of justice and go first. Those  players on  the government’s side of Miranda law (The Cop, William Rehnquist, Sandra Day O’Connor, Samuel Alito, John Roberts, Clarence Thomas, and Anthony Kennedy) go last.  The reason for this is that the game in some ways does not reflect real life, in which criminal defendant’s rarely get justice. In other ways, the game does reflect real life in the world of criminal defense.  This is because the Mirandland Game Judges will moderate the game, and those judges rule on questions the players must answer as they land on various spots around the Mirandaland game board.  Just like in real life, the judges will not always know the law better than the Game Lawyers, and they may not always correctly interpret the law.  If the Game Judge rules for you, and accepts your answer to one of the Mirandaland game questions, then you will be allowed to spin again and move closer to Suppression City. If, on the other hand (not Learned Hand), the Game Judge rules against your answer, then another player may be called upon to answer the question, and if that player gets the answer right they will then get to spin out of turn, and get that much closer to Suppression City. The game reflects real life in the court room because there is an advantage to knowing your case law.  The game also reflects real life in the courtroom because, the Game Judges will sometimes act arbitrarily, and sometime give other players an opportunity to answer a missed question, and sometimes they will not. This is just like in the real life of the criminal defense world, where there is not equal justice for all.

 The rules of Mirandaland are enforced by the Game Judges. After the player order is determined by the Game Judges, the players spin the game spinner in the determined order. Prior to their first spin each player must declare if they are going to proceed along the Miranda Route or the Voluntariness Route. The players then advance forward on the game board the number spaces that correlates with the number they spin.  There are eight different categories of spaces a player can land on. Two categories of cases (Coercion Corner and Important Case Space) do not have cards to pick that correlate with the space. In those instances the Game Judge give the players a chance to tell the other participants about the case or cases related to the space. If the Game Judge accepts the answer as sufficient, then the player can spin again. If insufficient, the Game Judge can either give another player a chance to explain the case and spin next, or the Game Judge can just lecture the group as a whole about the facts and holdings of the case mentioned in the Game Space.   There are six categories of cases that have cards with questions and answers associated with them. When a player lands on one of those spaces, a non-spinning player reads the question, and the spinning player can attempt to answer. The answer is written on the card. If answered correctly, the spinning player spins again. If not answered correctly, then the Game Judge will either have the player reading the card read the answer, or give another player an opportunity to answer. Throughout the game, the Game Judges will supplement correct answers with interesting facts about the law of the case, and the facts of the case.  Some of the cards involve case dialogues and require multiple readers.

The game comes with the following items:

· Miranda Cards 
· Voluntariness Cards 
· In Custody Cards
· Non-Trivial Legal Pursuit Cards 
· The Temple of Doom Space Cards 
· Name That Case Space Cards
· 10 Historical Character Game Figurines




The Miranda Land Cast of Characters

Chief Justice Earl Warren 
Chief Justice Earl Warren authored the majority opinion in Miranda. Prior to joining the Supreme Court, he was an Alameda County California prosecutor and district attorney for a number of years, and later was elected the Attorney General in California.  His elderly father was bludgeoned to death, and many police officers volunteered to assist in the murder investigation due to Warren’s popularity among law enforcement officers.  A progressive Republican, he served three terms as governor of California, and was appointed to the Supreme Court by President Eisenhower, whose advisor made a backroom deal promising Warren a seat on the Supreme Court in exchange for assisting Ike during the 1952 Republican National Convention. (Gray, Ed. ‘Chief Justice A Biography of Earl Warren.” Simon & Schuster 1997. 215 -255. Print.).
[bookmark: dabmci_b840d92acff341aaba057c4e603bcdd1][bookmark: dabmen_b840d92acff341aaba057c4e603bcdd1][bookmark: dabmci_439dd81661724be880e770c8c7adbde7][bookmark: dabmen_439dd81661724be880e770c8c7adbde7]Majority Opinion – Townsend v. Sain 372 U.S. 293(1063); Miranda v. Arizona  384 U.S. 436 (1066).

John Flynn 
Attorney John Flynn argued Miranda v. Arizona before the United States Supreme Court.  He was born in Tortilla Flats, Arizona.  His father “was a union organizer who served time in prison for cattle rustling.” Flynn joined the Marine Corps prior to turning eighteen, and was wounded twice in the Pacific during World War II, and was awarded the Silver Star.  He had a reputation as a gambler and drunkard, also as a great criminal defense lawyer who tried 125 first degree murder cases. At the end of his career, he was censured by the Arizona Supreme Court for dining and dashing in New York City, swiping a painting from a hotel, and experimenting with marijuana.  He also won the State v. Treadway appeal and retrial. Much of his work involved representing indigent clients. (Galbraith, Tom. “Remembering John Flynn.” Arizona Attorney Sept. 2009: 12-32. Print.) 

Flynn’s Oral Argument Before SCOTUS
The certiorari petition to the Supreme Court in Miranda was a Sixth Amendment argument based on the Escobedo case, but John Flynn’s oral argument emphazied a “Fifth Amendment Right to Remain Silent’ and a “Fifth Amendment Right to Counsel.” In responding to a question from Justice Potter Stewart he stated, “That he had a right not to incriminate himself, tht he had a right not to make any statements; that he had the right to be free from further questioning by the police department; that he had the right, at all times to be represented adequately in court, and that if he was too indigent, too poor to employ counsel, that the State would furnish him counsel.” (Ulrich, Paul, “What happened in Miranda?.”The Champion May 2016: 18 – 26. Print)

Ernesto Miranda 
He was twenty-three at the time his Fifth Amendment rights were violated.  As John Flynn described him during oral argument before the Supreme Court, he was of “Spanish-American” extraction, had an 8th grade education, prior criminal record, and was “mentally abnormal.”  At the time of the oral argument, Miranda was a confessed kidnapper and rapist.  He was stabbed to death at the La Amapoloa Bar. His attackers were read their Miranda rights and invoked.  The police had a partially typed confession from him that stated “…with full knowledge of my legal rights.”  The statement was read to him and he confessed in his own handwriting.  He was represented at trial by a 74-year-old court-appointed lawyer, Alvin Moore, who argued that the Supreme Court says a man is entitled to an attorney at the time of his arrest.  Moore made a Sixth Amendment right to counsel argument, not a Fifth Amendment argument.  A Rule 11 motion was filed in the case, and Miranda was found to be mentally abnormal, but fit to stand trial. (www.oyez.org//oyez/resource/case/251/.)(Gary L. Stuart, Miranda: “The Story of Americas Right to Remain Silent.”  Tuscon: Univ. of Arizona Press, 2004. Print.)

Justice William Rehnquist 
On April 1, 1969, when he was an Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Office of Legal Counsel, William Rehnquist sent a memorandum to the Associate Deputy Attorney General in regards to the Miranda decision:  “there is reason to believe the Warren court has tilted the scales of justice too far in favor of criminal suspects.”  He recommended in his memo that the president appoint a national commission “to determine whether the overriding public interest in law enforcement requires a constitutional amendment.” He said, “The court is now committed to the proposition that relevant, competent un-coerced statements of the defendant will not be admissible unless an elaborate set of warnings be given, which is very likely to have the effect of preventing a defendant from making any statements at all.”  At another point in the memo, Rehnquist talked about the court “believing that the poor disadvantaged criminal defendant should be just as aware of incriminating himself as the rich, well rounded criminal defendant, the court has undoubtedly put an additional hurdle in the way of convicting the guilty.”  (http://www.abajournal.com/magazine/article/mirandas_reprieve)
[bookmark: dabmci_ae823d844cce497faaf1e7305366ed7d][bookmark: dabmen_ae823d844cce497faaf1e7305366ed7d][bookmark: dabmci_aa73a51c01e5444d9cff0683c3687b84][bookmark: dabmen_aa73a51c01e5444d9cff0683c3687b84]Majority Opinion - Quarles v. New York, Duckworth v. Egan (If and when you go to court language); Dickerson v. United States, 530 U.S.48 (2000) (Miranda has become embedded in routine police practice to the point where the warnings have become part of our national culuture.”); Colorado v. Connelly, 479 U.S. 157 (1986); (Dissenting Opinions - Edwards v. Arizona, Roberson v. Arizona, and Doyle v. Ohio); Conneticutt v. Barrett, 479 U.S. 523(1987) (Defendant stating he would not give a written statement unless his attorney was present, but that he had no problem talking about the incident was not an invocation of his right to counsel.)
[bookmark: dabmci_6141dbc5d48642ae81151ea17a534389][bookmark: dabmen_6141dbc5d48642ae81151ea17a534389]Dissented – Arizona  v. Roberson, 486 U.S. 675 (1988)(Majority held that invoking right to consel under Miranda is not offense specific).
Justice Sandra Day O’Connor
Justice O’Connor started her judicial career out as a Maricopa County Superior Court Judge.  She served five years at the trial court level, and then moved on to the court of appeals in 1979.  In 1981, Ronald Regan appointed her to the United States Supreme Court. She was the first female justice in the history of the court and served for twenty four years. She was involved in the following notable Miranda decisions:
[bookmark: dabmci_9e8373869db54fb19043883b0637735a][bookmark: dabmen_9e8373869db54fb19043883b0637735a]Majority Opinion- Oregon v. Elstad; Davis v. United States, 512 U.S. 452 (1994) (“Maybe I should talk to a lawyer” is an ambiguous and equivocal request for counsel, and therefore interrogation can continue.)
Concurring Opinion – Duckworth v. Egan (If and when you go to court found to be the functional equivalent of Miranda warning), Yarborough v. Alvarado (Miranda custody test an objective inquiry and the court need not take age into consideration, and that police need not consider contingent psychological factors for custody. This defendant was seventeen-and-a-half, and Justice O’Connor hints in her opinion that there might be cases in the future where age will be a factor in the custody analysis).
[bookmark: dabmci_a9c71ef15c9c40c192383685afc91550][bookmark: dabmen_a9c71ef15c9c40c192383685afc91550][bookmark: dabmci_7a852a41154d4c1c9310d56ff9953651][bookmark: dabmen_7a852a41154d4c1c9310d56ff9953651]Dissenting Opinion – Seibert v. Missouri, 542 U.S. 600 (2004) (under the Elstad precedent, police should be able to question, Mirandize, then question again so long as the initial questions were not coerced).

Justice Sonia Sotomayor
Sonia Sotomayor was born the same year, 1954, that Justice Thrugood Marshall convinced the Supreme Court to overrule the separate but equal laws in Brown v. Board of Education.  Her parents moved from from Puerto Rico to New York City prior to her birth.  Her father did not speak English, and only had a third grade education, he was an alcoholic and passed away when she was nine years old.  Her mother joined the U.S. Women’s Air Corps during World War II to escape poverty, and used her GI benefits to obtain a GED.  Justice Sotomayor was raised from the time she was nine in a single parent home by her mother, a nurse at a methadone clinic, in the Bronxdale Houses, a housing project in New York City. She went from the housing projects to become a Princeton University graduate, and the recipient of a Harvard Law degree.  Justice Sotomayor was a prosecutor from 1980 -1984.  In 2009 she became the first Latina appointed to the United States Supreme Court. (Joan Biskupic, Breaking In The Rise of Sonia Sotomayor and the Politics of Justice, 1 -20, Sara Crichton Books/Farrar, Straus and Giroux (2014)).
[bookmark: dabmci_da1c4d6857eb4ad1ae22b635ccc2e23e][bookmark: dabmen_da1c4d6857eb4ad1ae22b635ccc2e23e]Majority Opinion – J.D.B. v. North Carolina, 131 S. Ct. 2394 (2011) (courts can look at the age of the suspect in objectively determining whether the suspect is in custody).
Dissenting Opinion – Berguhis v. Thompkins (Waiver case. Silence from 2 hours, 45 minutes, then response.)

Justice Elana Kagan
Served as a law clerk for Justice Thurgood Marshall. Was the first woman to serve as Solicitor General of the United States.  She was appointed to serve on the Supreme Court by President Barack Obama.
[bookmark: dabmci_a288d9fb6d4a4cb2a127ba1351eb453e][bookmark: dabmen_a288d9fb6d4a4cb2a127ba1351eb453e]Dissenting Opinion – Yarborough v. Alvarado, 541 U.S. 652 (2004) (arguing that there is no precedent that requires the use of age in determining whether someone is in police custody).

Justice John Roberts 
John Roberts, obtained both his undergraduate and law school degree from Harvard. He subsequently clerked for Justice Rhenquist, and then worked for in legal postions for President Reagan, the Justice Department, the Solicitor General’s Office and in private practice.  He joined the federal bench in 2003 and was appointed by George W. Bush to be Chief Justice of the United States Supreme Court in 2005.
[bookmark: dabmci_cd25bca171584d9cb3b6863a81305a36][bookmark: dabmen_cd25bca171584d9cb3b6863a81305a36]Joined in Dissenting Opinion – J.D.B. v. North Carolina, 131 S. Ct. 2394 (2011) (majority held that courts can look at the age of the suspect in objectively determining whether the suspect is in custody).

Justice Samuel Alito 
Samuel Alito, the son of Italian immigrants, obtained his undergraduate degree at Princeton and his law degree at Yale, and was a career prosecutor prior to becoming a federal juge. He was appointed to the Supreme Court by George W. Bush in 2005. In a dissenting opionion he authored in Obergefell v. Hodges, he professes a love for “long-established traditions” and worries that Court’s  approval of same sex marriage will “vilify Americans who are unwilling to assent to the new orthodoxy.”
Majority Opinion – Howe v. Fields (Prison inmate not in custody within the meaning of Miranda.)
[bookmark: dabmci_548a4233dd4e45b3be6ed682f0684a41][bookmark: dabmen_548a4233dd4e45b3be6ed682f0684a41]Dissenting Opinion – J.D.B. v. North Carolina, 131 S. Ct. 2394 (2011) (majority held that courts can look at the age of the suspect in objectively determining whether the suspect is in custody).


Justice Antonin Scalia 
[bookmark: dabmci_0e8d6b9e9fed4060b4ab80d8a0ac74a8][bookmark: dabmen_0e8d6b9e9fed4060b4ab80d8a0ac74a8]Majority Opinion – Maryland v. Shatzer, 559 U.S. 98 (2010) (Edwards rule in regards to counsel does not apply if there is a break of 14 days.)
[bookmark: dabmci_9f6742a8dc47459db9df63c75266ad23][bookmark: dabmen_9f6742a8dc47459db9df63c75266ad23][bookmark: dabmci_0391dc0e2e5c4504a3cc17894f559512][bookmark: dabmen_0391dc0e2e5c4504a3cc17894f559512]Dissenting Opinion – United States v. Dickerson, 530 U.S. 428 (2000) (Congress cannot overrule Miranda because it was a decision based on the Constitution rather than simply court-made law).
[bookmark: dabmci_74ac968bfa2b4e0689267ab66c02974e][bookmark: dabmen_74ac968bfa2b4e0689267ab66c02974e]Joined - in United States v. Patane, 542 U.S. 630 (2004) (physical evidence obtained from un-Mirandized voluntary statements is admissible, although the statements themselves may not be).
[bookmark: dabmci_64d846d3d1e748bfbfca2436a17c92ff][bookmark: dabmen_64d846d3d1e748bfbfca2436a17c92ff]Concurring Opinion – Davis v. United States, 512 U.S. 452 (1994) (“Maybe I should talk to a lawyer” is an ambiguous request for counsel and interrogation can continue.)
[bookmark: dabmci_cfc3d5da7115451caae9c3b3fbb495e2][bookmark: dabmen_cfc3d5da7115451caae9c3b3fbb495e2]Joined Dissent – Missouri v. Seibert (Majority held that in order to use a post-Mirandized confession, after eliciting an un-Mirandized confession, the police must give the defendant ample opportunity to consider the effect of the Miranda warnings) and J.D.B. v. North Carolina (majority held that courts can look at the age of the suspect in objectively determining whether the suspect is in custody).



Justice Clarence Thomas 
[bookmark: dabmci_8845e08bbc68453c91f5456696ab3983][bookmark: dabmen_8845e08bbc68453c91f5456696ab3983]Joined Opinion – Maryland v. Shatzer, 559 U.S. 98 (2010) (Edwards rule in regards to counsel does not apply if there is a break of 14 days.)
[bookmark: dabmci_82db98a1922e43758034d1cd65be718f][bookmark: dabmen_82db98a1922e43758034d1cd65be718f]Dissenting Opinion – Thompson v. Keohane, 516 U.S. 99 (1995) (In custody, finding not subject to presumption of correctness in federal habeas review.)


Justice Thurgood Marshall 
Thurgood Marshall was the first African American justice to serve on the United States Supreme Court.  Prior to serving on the Supreme Court he argued Brown v. Board of Education before the Court, and was the solicitor general who argued for the government before the Court during the oral arguments in Miranda.
[bookmark: dabmci_e8b9e69a576748ff88dcbd4be711ce61][bookmark: dabmen_e8b9e69a576748ff88dcbd4be711ce61]Majority Opinion – Berkemer v. McCarty (A police officer’s unarticulated plan to arrest a defendant has no bearing on whether or not they are in custody for a traffic stop.  An initial traffic stop does not equate with custody.) United States v. Hale, 422 U.S. 171 (1975)(Evidence of a defendant’s silence after Miranda could not be used to impeach trial testimony, as the Court found use of the evidence of silence in reliance on Miranda was substantially more prejudicial than probative.)
[bookmark: dabmci_bf907eb9519d448d94c32183d5bb42f4][bookmark: dabmen_bf907eb9519d448d94c32183d5bb42f4][bookmark: dabmci_38624ea1342f4f10ab9fd9707c5ce0d6][bookmark: dabmen_38624ea1342f4f10ab9fd9707c5ce0d6][bookmark: dabmci_af321700f49c45f39dcb032e288de8f7][bookmark: dabmen_af321700f49c45f39dcb032e288de8f7][bookmark: dabmci_a3f73962fe7a4e7f87d971f2483efa6c][bookmark: dabmen_a3f73962fe7a4e7f87d971f2483efa6c][bookmark: dabmci_ba153d99f83f420b83d57853bd4fce4f][bookmark: dabmen_ba153d99f83f420b83d57853bd4fce4f][bookmark: dabmci_4216aa557cc94798a55e98ef90c9220b][bookmark: dabmen_4216aa557cc94798a55e98ef90c9220b][bookmark: dabmci_e1e2901e62f8421dbc5b26d331fc9b00][bookmark: dabmen_e1e2901e62f8421dbc5b26d331fc9b00][bookmark: dabmci_de892bc3976c45ae976109206cf2d23f][bookmark: dabmen_de892bc3976c45ae976109206cf2d23f]Dissenting Opinion – Duckworth v. Egan, 492 U.S. 195 (1989) (“If and when you go to court language. Functional equivalent case.); Prysock v. California, 453 U.S. 355(1981) (The contents of Miranda warnings given need not be a virtual incatnation of the precise language of the Miranda opinion.); Rhode Island v. Innis, 446 U.S. 291 (1980) (Interrogation reasonably likely to elicit an incriminating response.);  Oregon v. Mathaison, 492 U.S. 492 (1977) (In-custody case where the court held one is not in custody simply because he is a suspect, rather there has to be “restriction  on person’s freedom of action in any significant way as to render him in custody.”); California  v. Beheler, 463 U.S. 1121 (1983) (Defendant not in custody if he voluntarily goes to the police station for an interview, is not placed under arrest, and is allowed to leave after a brief interview.);  Colorado v. Connelly, 479 U.S. 157 (1986). (Oregon v. Elstad).

Justice Anthony Kennedy 
[bookmark: dabmci_4e1fd1f1227d4b4082c13c1852688737][bookmark: dabmen_4e1fd1f1227d4b4082c13c1852688737]Majority Opinion – Yarborough v. Alvarado, 541 U.S. 652 (2004) (there is no precedent that requires the use of age in determining whether someone is in police custody).
 


Pre-Miranda

[bookmark: dabmen_ac232bc24cf14a92ad52c5c4a72d4d89]Escobedo v. Illinois, 84 S. Ct 1758 (1964) (Justice Goldberg)(White, Clark Stewart and Harlan dissented)
Facts: D was arrested for murder, he was handcuffed behind his back and taken to police headquarters. When questioned to elicit an incriminating response D replied, “ I am sorry but I would like to have advice from an attorney.” D was not free to leave, but not yet charged when he requested advice of an attorney. An attorney subsequently showed up at police headquarters, but D was not allowed to see his attorney.  The police chief told D’s lawyer he could not see his client because the police had not finished quetioing the D. Meanwhile, during questioning D continuolusly asked to speak to his lawyer, but was told his lawyer did not want to see him.
Holding:“[T]hat where…the investigation …is no longer a general inquiry into an unsolved crime but has begun to focus on a particular suspect, the suspect has been taken into police custody, the police carry out a process of interrogation that lends itself to eliciting incriminating statements, the suspect has requested and been denied an opportunity to consult with his lawyer, and the police have not effectively warned him of his absolute right to remain silent, the accused has been denied ‘the Assistance of Counsel’ in violation of the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution…and that no staatment elicited by the police during the interrogation can be used against him at a criminal trial.” At. 491.

The Fifth Amendment

“No person . . . shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself.” The Fifth Amendment was made applicable to the states through the Fourteenth Amendment.

The Problem Tackled by the Miranda Court

[bookmark: dabmci_946a446a6ab6432aba689fd32a43e8af][bookmark: dabmen_946a446a6ab6432aba689fd32a43e8af][I]ncommunicado interrogation of individuals in a police dominated atmosphere, resulting in self-incriminating statements without full warnings of constitutional rights. Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 444, 445 (1966).
 
The Holding of Miranda

[bookmark: dabmci_80b3b04c53684fa1beaec7e245a57738][bookmark: dabmen_80b3b04c53684fa1beaec7e245a57738]“[T]he prosecution may not use statements, whether exculpatory or inculpatory, stemming from custodial interrogation of the defendant unless it demonstrates the use of procedural safeguards effective to secure the privilege against self-incrimination.”   Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 444 (1966).

The Miranda Rights

[bookmark: dabmci_4d53738fa90a4ec08076232c2d3dd31b][bookmark: dabmen_4d53738fa90a4ec08076232c2d3dd31b]“[T]hat he has the right to remain silent, that anything he says can be used against him in a court of law, that he has the rights to the presence of an attorney, and that if he cannot afford an attorney one will be appointed for him prior to any questioning if he so desires.” Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 479 (1966).


Warren’s Rationale For Miranda Rights

[bookmark: dabmci_9208e2bc740c40eda9d9eb2137a898c0][bookmark: dabmen_9208e2bc740c40eda9d9eb2137a898c0]“incommunicado interrogation” “unfamiliar” “police-dominated atmosphere” “which work to undermine the individuals will to resist and to compel him to speak where he would not otherwise do so freely” ”Unless adequate protective devices are employed to dispel the compulsion inherent in custodial surroundings, no statement obtained from the defendant can truly be the product of his free choice.”  Miranda, at 458.

What is Precluded When a Miranda Violation Occurs?

[bookmark: dabmci_0c74e8daa1bc4575adbe4a22b6c0d112][bookmark: dabmen_0c74e8daa1bc4575adbe4a22b6c0d112]“[T]he prosecution may not use statements, whether exculpatory or inculpatory, stemming from custodial interrogation of the defendant unless it demonstrates the use of procedural safeguards effective to secure the privilege against self-incrimination.”  Miranda, at 444.

The Indigent Connection Roots

“If an individual indicates that he wishes the assistance of counsel before any interrogation occurs, the authorities cannot rationally ignore or deny his request on the basis that the individual does not have, or cannot afford, a retained lawyer.  The financial ability of the individual has no relationship to the scope of the rights involved here.  The privilege against self-incrimination secured by the Constitution applies to all individuals.  The need for counsel in order to protect the privilege exist for the indigent as well as the affluent.  In fact, were we to limit these constitutional rights to those who can retain an attorney, our decision today would be of little significance.  The cases before us, as well as the vast majority of confession cases with which we have dealt in the past involve those unable to retain counsel.  While authorities are not required to relieve the accused of his poverty, they have the obligation not to take advantage of his indigence in the administration of justice.  Denial of counsel to the indigent at the time of interrogation while allowing an attorney to those who can afford one would be no more supportable by or logical than the similar situation at trial and on appeal struck down by Gideon v. Wainwright.”  Miranda, at 472-473.



Burden of Showing Admissibility of a Statement

“The burden of showing admissibility rests, of course, on the prosecution. The prosecution bears the burden of proving, at least by a preponderance of the evidence, the Miranda waiver and the voluntariness of confessions.” Seibert at 608.




Custody


[bookmark: dabmen_62f87fa1e09c46739a2537096f8f20d8]Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436 (1966) 
Miranda  Case Custodial Interrogation Quotes
“By custodial interrogation we mean questioning initiated by law enforcement officers after a person had been taken into custody or otherwise deprived of his freedom of action in any significant way.”   At 444.
In each, the defendant was questioned by police officers, detectives, or a prosecuting attorney in a room in which he was cut off from the outside world At. 445.
“In other settings, these individuals might have exercised their constitutional rights.  In the incommunicado police-dominated atmosphere, they succumbed.”   At 456 (emphasis added).

[bookmark: dabmen_00bcf3a03ce0472187f5155f77c17528]Mathis v. United States, 391 U.S. 1 (1968) (Black) (Justice White, Harlan and Stewart dissented)
Facts:  D was questioned by a government agent for tax fraud while in state prison serving time on an unrelated sentence. He made incriminating statements, but had not been read his rights.  The government claimed there was no need to give Defendant Miranda warnings because the questions he was being asked were part of a “routine tax investigation,” and he was not put in custody by the officers questioning him and had been put in jail on completely separate charges. 
[bookmark: dabmci_5c11786e82fd4d45a52606298450cda9][bookmark: dabmen_5c11786e82fd4d45a52606298450cda9]Holding: Miranda’s Warnings scope is not limited to one who is questioned in custody in connection with the very case under investigation. Mathis at 4.



[bookmark: dabmen_9dd66baa8e124253a2f0394252e898ec]Orozco v. Texas, 394 U.S. 324 (1969) (Black) (Harlan concurring) (Justice White and Stewart dissented)
[bookmark: dabmci_80e2bca0200e45b194b26fd468d4f2de][bookmark: dabmen_80e2bca0200e45b194b26fd468d4f2de]Facts: The Defendant was suspected of having a fist fight with the victim, and then shooting him dead.  Several hours later four police officers showed up at Defendant’s boardinghouse, were let into the defendant’s bedroom, and questioned him in his bed at 4:00 a.m.  Defendant was not read his rights and made incriminating statements. An officer testified from the moment Defendant gave his name he was not free to go where he pleased, but was under arrest.  The State argued, “That since [the defendant] was interrogated on his own bed, in familiar surroundings” the Miranda holding should not apply.  Orozco at 326.
[bookmark: dabmci_0cce159335cf44f687c8648c28759acb][bookmark: dabmen_0cce159335cf44f687c8648c28759acb]Holding: The Miranda holding is not limited to station house interrogations, rather “in custody at the station house or otherwise deprived of his freedom of action in any significant way.” Orozco at 327.

[bookmark: dabmen_cdb9e694ee194b44bb81b4ecd67d97ba]United States v. Mandujano, 425 U.S. 564 (1975) (Burger, joined by White, Powell and Rehnquist) (Brennan, joined by Marshally concurring)(Stewart, joined by Blackmun concurring in judgment)
Issue:	   “[W]hether the warnings called for my Miranda v.  Arizona…must be given to a grand jury witness who is called to testify about criminal activities in which he may have been personally involved?” At 566.
Facts:  The Defendant was subpoenaed to testify before a grand jury about criminal activity he may have been involved in and was not read his Miranda Warnings prior to testifying.  He was later charged with drug trafficking and perjury.
[bookmark: dabmci_8d8890d3708b416bad4fb302c96c2f37][bookmark: dabmen_8d8890d3708b416bad4fb302c96c2f37]Holding:  “[T]he Miranda Court simply did not perceive judicial inquiries and custodial interrogations as equivalents.” Mandujano at 778.  Miranda’s scope does not extend to a grand jury inquiry into criminal activity.  The Court opined that the Defendant was free to invoke his Fifth Amendment Privilege Against Self Incrimination before the grand jury, but he was not free to commit perjury.


[bookmark: dabmen_2b0d079c62464f1e8b091eab7c7557ed]Beckwith v. United States, 425 U.S. 341(1976) (Burger) (Marshal oncurring in judgment)(Brennan dissented)
Facts: The Defendant was questioned by IRS agents concerning criminal violations of the tax law, and not given the warnings required by Miranda.  The defense position was that even though he was not in custody, the fact that he was the focus of the criminal investigation and the confusion by taxpayers over the criminal and civil functions of the IRS  placed the defendant under “psychological restraints” that were the “equivalent of custody.”
Issue:  Is Miranda required if the Defendant is not in custody, but he is the focus of the criminal investigation?
[bookmark: dabmci_027bdf0329594898ad6355bcd6b76342][bookmark: dabmen_027bdf0329594898ad6355bcd6b76342][bookmark: dabmci_f971963e28e84755a0a5a062be4540ca][bookmark: dabmen_f971963e28e84755a0a5a062be4540ca]Holding:  No, “Miranda implicitly defined “focus” for its purposes as “questioning initiated by law enforcement after a person has been taken into custody or otherwise deprived of his freedom of action in any significant way. (384 U.S., at 444). Beckwith at 347.

[bookmark: dabmen_960b6c184e334cc9978f7eec5b6826ea]Oregon v. Mathiason, 429 U.S. 492 (1977) (Per Curiam) (Brennan and Marhsall dissented)
Facts: The trial court refused to preclude Defendant’s confession because it found that he was not in custody at the time he made it.  A police officer left a card at the Defendant’s apartment requesting a call back.  Defendant called back, he was asked where he wanted to meet and had no preference.  They agreed to meet in an hour and a half at the State Patrol Office, two blocks from the Defendant’s apartment. They met in the hallway, shook hands, and proceeded to a room where a thirty minute interview was conducted behind closed doors. The officer advised the defendant he wanted to talk to him about a burglary and his truthfulness would possibly be considered by the prosecutor and judge. The officer further advised the Defendant that the police believed he was involved in the burglary, and lied to him and said his fingerprints were found at the scene. The Defendant sat for a few minutes and confessed. About 5 minutes had elapsed at this point. Defendant was then Mirandized, questioned further, and at the end of the interview was told he was not being arrested at that time, and could return to his family and job. To sum up the facts, the Defedant came voluntarily to the police station, he was informed that he was not under arrest, and he was allowed to leave at the end of the interview. The burglary had taken place 25 days prior to the interview.
Holding:  “Miranda warnings are required only where there has been such a restriction on a person’s freedom as to render him “in custody.”” At 495. The Supreme Court said that Miranda warnings are not required simply because the questioning took place in a police station, that the questioning was done by law enforcement, that the questioned person is one the police suspect, or that there were coercive aspects regarding the interrogation. 

[bookmark: dabmen_b3d3c28234904936a3631238897f05dc]California v. Beheler, 463 U.S. 1121 (1983) (Per Curiam) (Stevens, Brennan, Marshall dissented) (Factually Similar to Mathiason)
Facts: Defendant was an accomplice in robbery of a drug dealer. In the course of the robbery the drug dealer was killed by the co-defendants.  Defendant called police after the murder, the police arrived almost immediately, and Defendant gave them a statement and permission to search his backyard for the murder weapon. Later that evening the Defendant voluntarily agreed to accompany the police to the police station to talk about the murder. The police specifically told Defendant he was not under arrest. At the police station, Defendant agreed to talk to the police about the murder. The Police did not warn him of his Miranda rights. Prior to going to the police station for an interview, Defendant had become a suspect in the minds of the police.  Defendant was interviewed for 30 minutes at the station, he was not advised of his Miranda Rights, he was allowed to leave after the interview, and he was arrested in connection with the murder five days later.  Other facts considered by the Court were that the interview took place shortly after the crime, that he had bee driking earlier in the day, and  that the he was emotionally distraught at the time of the interview.
Annaysis: “We held in Miranda that “[b]y custodial interrogation, we mean questioning initiated by law enforcement officers after a person has been taken into custody or otherwise deprived of his freedom of action any siginifiant way.” (internal citations omitted). At 1123.
Holding: The Supreme Court held that Miranda warnings are not required for the admission of a Defendant’s statements if the suspect is not placed under arrest, voluntarily goes to the police station, and is allowed to leave after the interview by police.  At 1121.  The Court further held that Miranda warnings are not required “simply because the questioning takes place at the station house, or because the questioned person is one whom the police suspect.” At 1125.

[bookmark: dabmen_cd7c1436cfc640a887467ce8e1f9d1f4]Berkemer v. McCarty, 468 U.S. 420 (1984) (Marshall):
Facts: This case concerned the roadside questioning of a motorist detained in a traffic stop.  When the motorist exited the vehicle, he had difficulty standing.  The officer decided as soon as the motorist stepped out of the car that the motorist would be taken into custody and arrested for a traffic offense. The officer never communicated his intention to arrest prior to taking the motorist into custody. Instead he questioned the motorist and had him perform a field sobriety test. In response to questioning, the motorist said “he had consumed two beers and had smoked several joints of marijuana a short time before.” Defedant was subsequently arrested, taken to the jail where futher DUI test were administered and questioning was continued. He was never read his rights.
Issue: Does Miranda govern the admissibility of statement made during custodial interrogation by a suspect accused of a misdemeanor traffic offense? Does the roadside questioning of of a motorist detained pursuant to a traffic stip constitute custodial interrogation under Miranda?
[bookmark: dabmci_b5cb3025fb1d462fbca2a9bcbcdb3fee][bookmark: dabmen_b5cb3025fb1d462fbca2a9bcbcdb3fee]Annalysis: In the McCarty decision the court discusses factors involving a routine traffic stops which it uses to distinguish such stops from custodial interrogation: 1) traffic stop are presumptively temporary and brief; 2) a motorist expectations when he sees police lights flashing are that he will be obliged to spend a short amount of time answering questions and waiting while the officer checks his license and registration; 3) a motorist has an expectation that he may be given a ticket; 4) a motorist views traffic stop questioning diffrently from jail house interrogations which are long and continue until the interrogator is provided with the answer sought after;  and 5) the typical traffic stop is public, and therefore “reduces the abilility of the unscrupulous policeman to use illegitimate means to illicit self-incrininating statements” and  the public view “diminishes the motorist fear that, if he does not cooperate, he will be subjected to abuse.” At 439.  The court opined that the factors common to a routine traffic stop make it “substantially less  police dominated”  than the atmosphere in Miranda.  At 439. Miranda is implicated when “a suspect’s freedom of action is curtailed to a “degree associated with formal arrest.””At 440. (Internal citation omitted).
Holding: There are two holdings in this case. The first is that Miranda applies to all custodial interrogations “regardless of the nature and severity of the offense.”At. 434.  The second is that prior to formal arrest, roadside questioning of a detained motorist after a routine traffic stop does not constitute custodial interrogation,  In their factual analysis the Supreme Court found that lack of communication was crucial because “[a] policeman’s unarticulated plan has no bearing on the question whether a suspect was ‘in custody’ at a particular time.” “The only relevant inquiry is how a reasonable man in the suspect’s position would have understood his position.” At 442.  The Supreme Court also makes a distinction between questioning incident to a routine traffic, and a station house interrogation.

[bookmark: dabmen_c1c6d26222c94d758939720c000765c7]Pennsylvaniz v. Bruder, 488 U.S. 9(1988) (Per Curiam) (Marhsall dissented) (Stevens dissented on prodeurual grounds & joined by Marshall) (Factually similar to Berkemer)
Facts: Police observed the defendant driving erractically and run a red light. A traffic stop was made, and the officer smelled alchol and observed defendant stumbling.  The officer subsequently administered FST’s, had defendant recite the alphabet, and obtained an admission that defendant was drinking. Defendant was subsequently arrested.
Holding:   “Berkemer’s rule, that ordinary traffic stops do not inove custody for purposes of Miranda governs this case”  At 11.


[bookmark: dabmen_5ac9b76831e94d7da67f54eca8d3ee97]Stansbury v. California, 511 U.S. 318 (1994) (Per Curiam)
Facts: Defendant was asked to come into the police station, by an officer who knocked on his door while flanked by three other officers.  He was driven to the police station in the front seat of the officer’s patrol car.  The officer askded him to go to the police station  for an interview because he was one of two ice cream truck drivers who had been seen talking to a little girl on the day of her rape and murder. Defendant was not the primary suspect of the interviewing detective; rather it was the other ice cream truck driver. The initial police contact was by a plain-clothes officer who knocked on Defendant’s door at 11:00 p.m. while three other detectives surrounded the door.  Defendant was told the officers were investigating a homicide, wanted to question him, and asked him to come to police station.  He rode in the front seat of the officer’s patrol car.  Defendant made several statements about his interaction with the victim, and his actions the evening of the murder, but the interviewing officer’s suspicions did not shift to Defendant until he made a comment about borrowing his roommate’s turquoise car.  Defendant, in response to further questioning, admitted a prior conviction for rape, kidnapping, and child molestation. At that point the interview was terminated and another officer advised defendant of his Miranda rights.  Defendant then declined to make further statements, requested an attorney, and was arrested.  
Procedural History:  The trial court held that all of statements made prior to the officer’s suspicions shifting to the Defendant were admissible, but statements made subsequent to the shift and pre-Miranda were inadmissible. The California Supreme Court applied a legal standard that included whether the investigation focused on the Defendant.
Analysis:  In its analysis the court opined that“an officer’s views concerning the nature of an interrogation, or beliefs concerning the potential culpability of the individiaual being questioned, may be one among many factors that bear upon the assessment whether that individual was in custody, but only if the offier’s views or beliefs were somehow manifested to the individual under interrogation and would have affected how a reasonable person in that position would prevcieve his or her freedom to leave. At. 325.

[bookmark: dabmci_c09e5d4ab9474a0a808133d03b62bc9d][bookmark: dabmen_c09e5d4ab9474a0a808133d03b62bc9d]Holding: The Supreme Court held that “an officer’s subjective and undisclosed view concerning whether the person being interrogated as a suspect is irrelevant to the assessment whether the person is in custody.”  At 319.  The Court stated that a custody determination is determined by objective factual circumstances, not by the subjective views of either the interrogating law enforcement officer or the interrogated defendant. At. 323. The court also found that in a custody determination judges must determine “how a reasonable person in the postion of the individual being questioned would gauge the breadth of his or her freedom of action.” At. 323.  (quoting Berkemer v. McCarty, 468 U.S., at 440).


[bookmark: dabmen_325c1be40160444aa103e261a8e7011d]Thompson v. Keohane, 516 U.S. 99 (1995) (Ginsburg, Joined by Stevens, O’Connor, Scalia, Kennedy, Souter and Breyer) (Thomas dissented, joined by Rehnquist):
Facts:  The Defendant called the police to let them know his ex-wife fit the description of an unknown murder victim who had been stabbed 29 times. He was asked to come down to the station to identify the belongings of the victim.  This request was a ruse, and the police actually wanted to question the Defendant about the homicide.  The Defendant drove to the police station where he was questioned in a small interview room for over two hours by unarmed troopers.  He was constantly told he was free to leave, and repeatedly told that they knew he killed his ex-wife. Defendant was not informed of his Miranda rights. Prior to asking questions that elicited a confession, troopers told Defendant that the execution of a search warrant was underway at his home, and that his truck was about to be searched pursuant to a warrant. The Defendant was allowed to leave at the conclusion of the interview. His truck was impounded by police, so they dropped him at a friend’s house. Defendant was arrested two hours later for the murder of his ex-wife. Below is an exceprt from the Keohane interrogation dialogue:


Q: Do you know – of course, I don’t mean to take up a lot of your time, you—you can leave any time that you want to, if you’ve got seomenting else going on.
A: Oh no (indiscernible) around here, no.
Q: I know we called you and probably woke you up and …
A: No, I was just laying there.
Q: Okay.  But you know, you can go any time you want to.  We got a –you know, we’re trying to—trying to crack on this thing and I don’t imagine its any secret to  you there are some of your friends or associates who have been kind of calling up and saying, you know they’ve been pointing at you…
A: Yeah,, that (indiscernible) guy you know and we’ve been friends for ten years, you know, and this guy is starting to say stuff that I never even said…”
Q: ... And I’m willing to work with you on this thing to make the best of a bad situation.  I can’t tell you that this isn’t a bad situation. I mean you’re free to get up and walk out of here now and–never talk to me again.  But what I’m telling you now is that this is probably the last chance we’ll have to–for your to say something that other people are gonna believe  because let’s just–let’s just say that there’s enough (indiscernible) here already that we can---we can prove conclusively beyond a reasonable doubt that—that you were responsible for this thing—this thing.  Well really there’s a lot that she’s responsible for, but you’re the guy that’s stuck with the problem…
A:  I’ve already told you the story.
Q:  …Well you haven’t told me the critical part and you haven’t told me about the part where Dixie gets killed.
A:  And I don’t know that.  That’s your guy’s job. You’re suppose to know that.
Q:  Well like I told you, we know the who, what, where, the when, the how.  The thing we don’t  know is the why.  And that’s—that’s the thing we’ve got to kind of get straight here today between you and I. See I know that you did this thing. There’s—there’s no question in my mind about that.  I can see it.  I can see it when I’m looking at you.  And I know that you care about Dixie.  I mean this isn’t something that you wanted to happen…
Q: …I think that now it’s the time for you to come honest about this thing, because if you turn around later and try to…
A:  I am being honest about it.
Q: No, you haven’t.  You told part of the truth and you told a lot of it, but you haven’t told all of it…I mean your—you’re not probably lying directly to me, but your’e lying by omission…I can tell you that right now there’s a search warrant being served out at [your home] and a  search warant for your truck is gonna be served and we’ve got a forensic expert up from—from Anchorage…
A:  A huh.
Q:  …And I don’t believe that you’re a bad person.  I really don’t…[W]hat happned here was never planned, what happned here was one of these things that just happen….And when it happned you’re stuck with this—I mean you’re stuck with a hell of a mess now. She got—she’s finally got you into more trouble than she can possibly imagine.  I mean she brought this thing on you.  She causes that…I mean I don’t know whether she started the thing by grabbing the knife and saying she was gonna (indescerbnible) at you and it got turned around or just what happned. I mean I don’t know these things.  At 460 - 462.
Procedural History: The issue for the Supreme Court in this case was whether or not the State-court determination that the defendant was not in custody when he confessed was a finding of fact that did not merit federal review due to the presumption of correctness standard of the applicable federal habeas statue, or a mixed question of law and fact (The court example of a mixed question of law and fact is a totality of the circumstances assessment.) calling for independent federal review. The Supreme Court held that “the issue whether a suspect is ‘in custody,’ and therefore entitled to Miranda warnings, presents a mixed question of law and fact qualifying for independent review” and that the presumption of correctness does not apply.
Holding: The Supreme Court says that there are “[t]wo discrete inquiries are essential to the [Miranda custody] determination: first, what were the circumstances surrounding the interrogation [This is a factual test.]; and second, given those circumstances, would a reasonable person have felt he or she was not at liberty to terminate the interrogation and leave [this is an objective test].”  At 116. The court in Keohane tells us that the test to determine if a suspect is in custody is an “objective” test.
On Remand: Based on the Supreme Courts holding, the Ninth Ciruit found  that the Defendant was not in custody for purposes of Miranda.  In its finding the court pointed out that Defendnat voluntarily went to the police station upon request, that he was told numerous times that he was free to leave, and that the police allowed him to leave at the end of questioning.

Yarborough v. Alvarado, 541 U.S.652 (2004) (Justice Kennedy)(O’Connor  concurred) (Breyer dissented, joined by Stevens, Souter and Ginsburg): 
Facts: Police did not transport the seventeen-and-a-half-year-old Defendant to the police station or require him to appear at a particular time.  Defendant’s parents remained in the police station lobby during the interview, and he and his parents were told the interview was not going to be long. The detective did not pressure the defendant with threat of arrest or prosecution, rather the detective appealed to Defendant’s interest in telling the truth. During the interview, the detective focused on the shooter rather than the defendant.  The detective asked the defendant twice during the interview if he wanted to take a break.  At the end of interview, the Defendant was allowed to go home.  The interview lasted two hours. The detective did not tell the Defendant he was free to leave. The Defedant’s parents brougnt him to the the police station. Defedant claimed his parents asked to be present during the interview, but were rebuffed.
Holding: The Supreme Court held that the state court decision finding the Defendant was not in custody during the interview, so no Miranda warnings were required, could not be called an unreasonable application of federal law simply because it failed to explicitly mention the Defendant’s age. The Court commented that their “opinions applying the Miranda custody test have not mentioned the suspect’s age, much less mandated its consideration.” At 666.  The Court also commented that the police officer need not consider “contingent psychological factors” when deciding if Miranda Rights should be given.”  At  668.  Follows a long line of Miranda cases in reaffirming that the Miranda custody test is an objective inquiry. In the Alvarado holding, Justice Kennedy list fact weighing  toward and facts weighing against a cutody finding: 1) In Custody Facts: station house interrogation, two hour interview, detective did not tell defendant he was free to leave, defendant did not come to police station on his own, rather taken there by his legal guardian, parents asked to be present during the interview and were rebuffed;  2) Not In Custody Facts: police did not transport Defedant to the station, police did not require defendant to be at the station at a particular time, police did not threaten defendant or suggest that he would be placed under arrest, parents remaining in the lobby suggested that the interview was going to be brief, Defedant and parents told that the interview was not going to be long, during the interview the detective focused on co-defendant’s crime, not defendant, detective did not threaten defendant with arrest or prosecution, instead she appealed to his intrest in telling the truth and being helpful to police, detective twice asked Defedant if he wanted to take a break, and at the end of the interview defendant went home.  In her concurring opinion, Justic O’Connor sets the foundation for the Justice Sotomanyor’s holing in J.D.B. v. North Carolina by warning that, “There may be cases in which a suspect age will relevant to the custody inquiry under Miranda.” 

[bookmark: dabmen_95c66d2046f342929cf3e6532aeddd6d]J.D.B. v. North Carolina, 131 S. Ct. 2394 (2011) (Sotomayor, joined by Kennedy, Ginsburg, Breyer, and Kagan) (Alito dissented, joined by Roberts, Scalia, and Thomas)
Facts: Defendant was a 13-year-old 7th grader attending middle school when he was removed from his classroom by a uniformed police officer, escorted to a closed-door conference room, and questioned by police for at least a half hour about residential burglaries. At the start of questioning the 13-year-old was not given Miranda warnings, the opportunity to speak to his grandmother (his legal guardian), nor was he informed he was free to leave.
Issue: Is the age of child subjected to police questioning relevant to the custody analysis?
Holding: The Supreme Court held that that a child’s age properly informs the Miranda custody analysis.

[bookmark: dabmen_a3344dbe76284658affc80f6d0dc8ec8]Howe v. Fields, 132 S. Ct. 1181 (2012) (Justice Alito) (Joined by Roberts, Scalia, Kennedy, Thomas, and Kagan) 
Facts: Defendant was serving a prison sentence, and was escorted to a conference room by guards to be questioned by two sheriff’s deputies about whether he had molested a 12-year-old boy before coming to prison. Defendant was not advised that he was free to decline to speak with the deputies. Defendant was questioned between 5 and 7 hours.  Defendant had to go through locked doors to get to the conference room.  Defendant was told he was free to leave and return to his cell at the beginning of the interview, and that was repeated later in the interview. The door to the conference room was sometimes open and sometimes closed during the interrogation. During the interview, the Defendant began to yell, was told to sit down, and was also told that he was free to leave if he did not want to cooperate.  He said several times during the interview that he no longer wanted to talk, but he did not ask to go back to his cell prior to the end of the interview.  He eventually confessed.  At the end of the interview, he had to wait for a detention officer to escort him back to his cell.  He was never given Miranda warnings. 
Issue:   Is a prisoner always in custody for purposes of Miranda whenever a prisoner is isolated from the general prison population and questioned about conduct outside the prison?
[bookmark: dabmci_8ab2f63fa10d4debbd55b8655ad4748f][bookmark: dabmen_8ab2f63fa10d4debbd55b8655ad4748f]Rule:  “Determining [for Miranda Custody Purporses] whether an individual’s freedom of movement was curtailed, however, is simply the first step in the analysis, not the last.”  At 1189.“[I]mprisonment alone is not enough to create a custodial situation within the meaning of Miranda.” At 1190.
Rationale: That questioning of a person in custody does not have the shock that accompanies arrest; a prisoner lives in prison, so interrogation there is different from  that of an ordinary citizen who is yanked from familiar surroundings and interrogated in a station house; a prisoner, unlike other citizens, is not likely to think that if he speaks he has the hope of being released; a prisoner, unlike a person who has not been convicted, knows that law enforcement officers who question him lack the authority to affect the duration of his sentence; questioning a non-prisoner in isolation may contribute to a coerecive atmosphere by preventing contact with family and friends, but questioning a prisoner in private does not remove the prisoner from a supportive environment.
Holding: The Supreme Court held that “[S]ervice of a prison term without more, is not enough to constitute Miranda custody.” At 1192. (This does not mean that Miranda Rights are never required to be read to a prison inmate, as the Court stated, “[a]n inmate who is removed  from the general prison population for questioning and is thereafter …subjected to treatment” in connection with the interrogation that renders him in custody for practical purposes…will be entitled to the full panoply of protections approved by Miranda.”(internal quotation markes and citation
 omitted)). The Supreme court also stated that the question of Miranda Custody not only involves the the question of freedom of momemet, but that also involves “the additional question whether the relevant enviorment presents the same inherently coervice pressures as the type of station house questioning at issue in Miranda.”  At 1118. In his holding Justice Alito finding that the Defedant Fields was not in custody within the meaning of Miranda because “he was told he was free to end the questioning and to return to his cell.” At 1194.

[bookmark: dabmen_73fc56f66c254ff9a10f9a00c7d36bb1]State v. Maciel, 240 Ariz. 46, 375 P.3d 938 (2016)
Facts: Police were called in reference to a possible break-in at a vacant building. Upon arrival, the officer contacted Defendant who was sitting a few feet from a broken window, obtained his identification, and conducted a pat-down search for weapons. The officer then asked Defendant “what he was doing” and if he knew “how the board got removed from the window.” Defendant replied that he was just sitting down. The officer then asked Defendant to sit in his patrol vehicle, uncuffed, until another officer arrived at the scene. A second officer arrived within minutes, and Defendant was asked to sit on the curb next to the building while the second officer stood nearby. Then, the pastor of an adjacent church arrived and advised that the board had been in place over the broken window three days earlier. With that additional information, the first officer again asked Defendant about the window, and, without further prompting, Defendant admitted removing the board the day before and entering the building to look for money. Defendant was then placed under arrest, handcuffed, and placed in the patrol vehicle. After searching the building, the first officer went back to the patrol vehicle, advised Defendant of his Miranda right and again asked him about going into the building. Defendant again reported he removed the board and entered the building. Following a jury trial, Defendant was convicted of one count of burglary. The entire investigation lasted aboput an hour.
[bookmark: dabmci_af3f3c84d903424e807f22c48311d972][bookmark: dabmen_af3f3c84d903424e807f22c48311d972][bookmark: dabmci_7bc7b212e5bd46c399de1c11046a0229][bookmark: dabmen_7bc7b212e5bd46c399de1c11046a0229][bookmark: dabmci_10c051cd42b242b4bed40bf289b2c1ba][bookmark: dabmen_10c051cd42b242b4bed40bf289b2c1ba][bookmark: dabmci_62af1bd8ceb2435d83626cb29c751be9][bookmark: dabmen_62af1bd8ceb2435d83626cb29c751be9][bookmark: dabmci_abffc96b75ec4128b1c8b53ba6439c8a][bookmark: dabmen_abffc96b75ec4128b1c8b53ba6439c8a]Rule: Whether a person is “in custody” for Miranda purposes ultimately depends on whether there is a “formal arrest or restraint on freedom of movement of the degree associated with a formal arrest. “State v. Maciel, 375 P.3d 938, 941, 240 Ariz. 46, 49 (Ariz., 2016) the United States Supreme Court has made clear that restraint on freedom of movement alone does not establish Miranda custody. Howes v. Fields, 565 U.S. 499, 132 S.Ct. 1181, 1189–90, 182 L.Ed.2d 17 (2012); Maryland v. Shatzer, 559 U.S. 98, 112–13, 130 S.Ct. 1213, 175 L.Ed.2d 1045 (2010); see also Berkemer v. McCarty, 468 U.S. 420, 436–37, 104 S.Ct. 3138, 82 L.Ed.2d 317 (1984) (declining to “accord talismanic power” to the phrase “freedom of action”)  State v. Maciel, 375 P.3d 938, 941, 240 Ariz. 46, 49 (Ariz., 2016).
[bookmark: dabmci_2ef1706b312b4d68b42d6b25b1644d6e][bookmark: dabmen_2ef1706b312b4d68b42d6b25b1644d6e][bookmark: dabmci_13ea2b3817bc42b3ab880e3e2dd99bed][bookmark: dabmen_13ea2b3817bc42b3ab880e3e2dd99bed]Holding: Defendant was neither in custody when asked to sit in the patrol car, nor when he was asked to sit on the curb. Defendant was not in custody in the patrol car because “none of the objective indicia of arrest were present” and the officer placed Defendant in the car for safety reasons. At the suppression hearing the officer could not remember if the door was open or closed. Defendant was not in custody during the curbside questioning because he was not handcuffed or told he was under arrest, no weapons were drawn, no physical force was used, and there was nothing coercive or inherently threatening about the curb itself. Additionally, nothing in the record to suggested the second officer was directed to treat Defendant as if he were in custody or that the second officer believed Defendant to be in custody. Moreover, the length and form of the interrogation, which consisted of two or three questions that lasted “a few moments, at most,” did not objectively indicate Defendant was in custody. Ultimately, “[i]t was not improper for the officer, armed with additional information [from the pastor], to return to Defendant and attempt to further narrow the timeframe during which the board may have been removed and the crime committed.” In the court’s annlaysis, the court found that the Defendant was under constant supervision from the time he was first spoken to by the officers, and that no reasonable person would have felt free to walk away, but that significant curtailment of freedom of movment does not end the Miranda Custody analysis, as the second prong of the analysis to find a defendant in custody reguries “inherently coercive pressures” that threaten to subjugate the individual to the examiners’s will.” Maciel citing Howe v. Fields, 132 S.Ct. at 1`189 – 90.



Burden

[bookmark: dabmen_cf54bf174e2044ae802850a9cb8fbd4f]Brown v. Illinois, 422 U.S. 590 (1975) (Blackmun Opinion)
Facts: Defendant was illegally arrested for murder without probable cause. Less than two hours later, Defendant was Mirandized and interrogated. He confessed twice over several hours of interrogation. 
Issue:  Whether the confession should be excluded as the fruit of the illegal arrest, or is it  admissible because the giving of the Miranda warnings sufficiently attenuated the taint of the arrest.
Holding: The Supreme Court held that the prosecution failed to meet its burden of showing that the statements were admissible under Wong Sun. The Court held that Miranda warnings do not always purge the taint of an illegal arrest.



The Miranda Rights & The Functional Equivalents


“As for the procedural safeguards to be employed, unless other fully effective means are devised to inform accused persons of their right of silence and to assure a continuous opportunity to exercise it, the following measures are required prior to any questioning.  Prior to any questioning, [1] the person must be warned that he had a right to remain silent, [2] that any statement he does make may be used against him, [3] and that he has the right to the presence of an attorney, [4] either retained or appointed.”  Miranda at 444. (Emphasis added).

[bookmark: dabmci_64bf408bbd4b4e19b6f1b01f9665fa94][bookmark: dabmen_64bf408bbd4b4e19b6f1b01f9665fa94]“[T]hat he has the right to remain silent, that anything he says can be used against him in a court of law, that he has the rights to the presence of an attorney, and that if he cannot afford an attorney one will be appointed for him prior to any questioning if he so desires.” Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 479 (1966).


“potential alternatives for protecting the privilege which might be devised by Congress or the States,” …”at least as effective in apprising accused persons of their right of silence and in assuring a continuous opportunity to exercise it.”

[bookmark: dabmci_24c813a6acd244bb8685a59e7e0a3952][bookmark: dabmen_24c813a6acd244bb8685a59e7e0a3952][bookmark: dabmci_4c77bce9d4be40f28854fbaf42d611d7][bookmark: dabmen_4c77bce9d4be40f28854fbaf42d611d7]We have never insisted that Miranda warnings be given in the exact form described in that decision.4 In Miranda itself, the Court said that “[t]he warnings required and the waiver necessary in accordance with our opinion today are, in the absence of a fully effective equivalent, prerequisites to the admissibility of any statement made by a defendant.” Duckworth v. Eagan, , 492 U.S. 195, 202 (1989)


[bookmark: dabmci_fb8105cfad2743f4b981f412879f2b09][bookmark: dabmen_fb8105cfad2743f4b981f412879f2b09][bookmark: dabmci_c0c16e45723d4f75aac21ba4c6f4f1db][bookmark: dabmen_c0c16e45723d4f75aac21ba4c6f4f1db]California v. Prysock, 435 U.S. 355 (1981) (Per Curiam) (Justice Stevens dissented and was joined by Brennan and Marshall)
Facts: Defendant, a minor was arrested for murder and Mirandized in the presence of his parents by a police officer with the following warning:
 
Officer:  		Number one, you have the right to remain silent.  This means you don’t have to talk to me at all unless you so desire.  Do you understand this?
Defendant:		Yes.
Officer:		If you give up your right to remain silent, anything you say can and will be used against you. Do you understand this?
Defendant:		Yes.
Officer:		You have the right to talk to a lawyer before you are questioned, have him present with you while being questioned, and all during the questioning.  Do you understand this?
Defendant:		Yes.
Officer:		You also, being a juvenile, you have the right to have your parents present, which they are, do you understand this?
Defendant:		Yes.
Officer:		Even if they weren’t here you would have this right.  Do you understand this?
Defendant:		Yes.
Officer:		You all, uh, - if - you have the right to a lawyer appointed to represent you at no cost to yourself.  Do you understand this?
Defendant:		Yes.
Officer:		Now, having all these legal rights in mind, do you wish to talk to me at this time?
Defendant:		Yes.

At this point the tape recorder goes off at the request of the Defendant’s mother who wanted clarification.

Defendant’s Mom:	Can my son still have a lawyer at a later time if he gave a statement now without one?
Officer:		He will have a lawyer when he goes to court and “he could have one at this time if he wished one.” At 2809.

At this point the tape recorder is turned back on.

Officer:		Okay, Mrs. Prysock, you asked to get off tape…During that time you asked, decided you wanted some time to think about getting, whether to hire a lawyer or not.
Defendant’s Mom:	Cause I didn’t understand it.
Officer:		And you have decided not that you want to go ahead and you do not wish a lawyer was present?
Defendant’s Mom:	That’s right.
Officer:		And I have not persuaded you in any way?
Defendant’s Mom:	No, you have not.
Officer:		And, Mr. Prysock is that correct that I have done nothing to persuade you not to, not to hire a lawyer or go on with this?
Defendant:		That’s right.
Officer:		Okay, that everything we’re doing here is strictly in accordance with Randall and yourselves, is that correct?
Defendant’s Dad:	That is correct.
Officer:		Okay, Uh, all right, Randy, I can’t remember where I left off, I think I asked you, uh, with your legal rights in mind, do you wish to talk to me at this time? This is with everything I told you, all your legal rights, your right to an attorney, your right, your right to remain silent, and all these, I mean do you wish to talk to me about the case at this time?
Defendant:		Yes.

Lower Court Holding: Defedant “was not properly advised of his right to the services of a free lawyer before and during interrogation.” At 356.
Issue: Under Miranda, must an interrogating officer use a virtual incantation of the precise language contained in the Miranda opinion?
Holding: The Supreme Court held that there is no rigid rule that the Miranda Warnings given be a virtual incantation of the precise language of the Miranda opinion, and that Miranda warnings are not “inadequate simply because of the order in which they are given.” At 358.
[bookmark: dabmci_dfa3e7c7b94d4f298cc8b534492657ef][bookmark: dabmen_dfa3e7c7b94d4f298cc8b534492657ef]Rationale: “[N]othing in the warnings given [to the defendant] suggested any limitations on the right to the presence of appointed counsel different from the clearly conveyed right to a lawyer in general, including the right “to a lawyer before you are questioned…while you are being questioned, and all during the questioning.”  At 360-61.  Court cites United States v. Noa, 443 F.2d 144 (9th Cir. 1971) in stating that this is not the case where the defendant was not informed of his right to the presence of a lawyer during questioning…or in which the offer of an appointed attorney was associated with a future time in court.  At 361.

[bookmark: dabmen_1b73925efc2b4b17b837815b62851949]Duckworth v. Egan, 492 U.S. 195 (1989) (Chief Justice Rehnquist) (Justice O’Connor and Scalia joined in a concurring opinion) (Justice Marshall dissented, joined by Brennan)
Facts: Defendant confessed to attempted murder for stabbing a woman nine times after she refused to have sex with him, and the confession followed Miranda warnings that “included the advice that a lawyer would be appointed ‘if and when you go to court.’” At 197.  The rights read to the defendant were as follows:

“Before we ask you any question, you must understand your rights.  You have the right to remain silent.  Anything you say can be used against you in court.  You have a right to talk to a lawyer for advice before we ask you any questions, and to have him with you during questioning.  You have this right to the advice and presence of a lawyer even if you cannot afford to hire one.  We have no way of giving you a lawyer, but one will be appointed for you, if you wish, if and when you go to court.  If you wish to answer questions now without a lawyer present, you have the right to stop answering questions at any time.  You also have the right to stop answering at any time until you’ve talked to a lawyer.” At 197.

Issue: Whether the “if and when you go to court” language of the warnings reasonably conveyed to a suspect his rights as required by Miranda?
Holding: The Supreme Court held that if and when you go to court language did not link the indigent’s right to counsel with a future event and that the warning was adequate because “ [w]e have never insisted that the Miranda warnings be given in the exact form described in that decision.” At 203. The Court cited Prysock, “Reviewing courts therefore need not examine Miranda warnings as if construing a will of defining the terms of an easement.  The inquiry is simply whether the warnings reasonably “convey to a [suspect] his rights as required by Miranda.” Prysock at 361.  The Court rationale was that the totality of the statement had to be looked at to determine if it was the functional equivalent of Miranda.

[bookmark: dabmci_bfd3b42d8c55418586e36735d06b5a2c][bookmark: dabmen_bfd3b42d8c55418586e36735d06b5a2c][bookmark: dabmci_64305fca395b43ebb88109473f794a33][bookmark: dabmen_64305fca395b43ebb88109473f794a33]Powell v. Florida, 130 S. Ct. 1195 (2010) (Justice Ginsburg) (Stevens and Breyer dissented)
Facts: A defendant was convicted for unlawful possession of a weapon. He asserted that he was not properly advised of his right to counsel before admitting to ownership of the weapon. The following language, read from a form to Powell, was used: 

“You have the right to remain silent.  If you give up the right to remain silent, anything you say can be sued against you in court.  You have the right to talk to a lawyer before answering any of our questions.  If you cannot afford to hire a lawyer, one will be appointed for you without cost and before any questioning.  You have the right to use any of these rights at any time during the interview. (Catch all).

Holding: “The form [in Powell] merely failed to explicitly inform the suspect that the right to counsel existed during questioning as well as before questioning.’  The Supreme Court held the Powell warning reasonably conveyed to the suspect that the right to counsel applied during interrogation. While Miranda requires that a suspect is warned prior to any questioning that he has the right to the presence of an attorney, it does not dictate the words in which the essential information must be conveyed.  Rather, to determine whether police warnings are satisfactory, the inquiry is simply whether the warnings reasonably conveyed to a suspect his right as required by Miranda. 

Interrogation

[bookmark: dabmen_708825bae0784eef8d02ae8725c33082]Miranda v. Arizona 384 U.S. 436, 444 (Chief Justice Earl Warren)
[bookmark: dabmci_d269a7f2d921447394799e6c918016fc][bookmark: dabmen_d269a7f2d921447394799e6c918016fc]“By custodial interrogation we mean questioning initiated by law enforcement officers after a person has been taken into custody or otherwise deprived of his freedom of action in any significant way.” Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 444.

[bookmark: dabmen_9f865db65b3540ec9dfd7bd636178e6a]Rhode Island v. Innis, 446 U.S. 291(1980) (Justice Stewart):
Facts: After being arrested on the street for suspicion of robbery and murder, the Defendant was fully informed of his Miranda rights.  Defendant then told a police captain at the scene that he “understood those rights wished to speak with a lawyer.”  After invoking his right to counsel, the Defendant was put in a caged police car.  Three officers were tasked with transporting the Defendant to the police station, and they were instructed by the captain not to question the Defendant, and or intimidate or coerce him in any way. While en route to the police station, officers had a conversation:

“At this point, I was talking back and forth with Patrolman McKenna stating that I frequent this area while on patrol and [that because a school for handicapped children is located nearby,] there’s a lot of handicapped children running around in this area, and God forbid one of them might find a weapon with shells and they might hurt themselves.” “I more or less concurred with him [Geckman] that it was a safety factor and that we should, you know, continue to search for the weapon and try to find it.” While Patrolman Williams said nothing, he overhears the conversation between the two officers:  “He [Geckman] said it would be too bad if the little - I believe he said a girl- would pick up the gun, maybe kill herself.”  The Defendant then interrupted and said that the officers should turn the car around so he could show them where the gun was located.” At 1687.  The car was turned around, and Defendant was read his rights once again, which he acknowledged understanding, and stated that he “wanted to get the gun out of the way because of the kids in the area in the school.” At 1687.

Issue: Whether the Defendant was interrogated by the police in violation of his right to counsel under Miranda when they consulted each other in earshot of Defendant about the danger that an unfound weapon would pose to children.
Holding: The Supreme Court held that “the Miranda safeguards come into play whenever a person in custody is subjected to either express questioning or its functional equivalent.  [I]nterrogation under Miranda refers to not only to express questioning, but also to any words or actions on the part of the police…that the police know are reasonably likely to elicit an incriminating response from the suspect.” At 301.

[bookmark: dabmen_4cb1da56cc274cabb96ce160d2efc801]Illinois v. Perkins, 110 S.Ct. 2394 (Justice Kennedy; joined by Rhenquist, White, Blackmun, Stevens, O’Connor, and Scalia)(Brennan concurring in judgment)(Marhall dissenting)
Facts:  An informant and a undercover agent were placed in the cell of the defendant who had previously let the informant know that he was the the assailant in an uncharged murder. Their plan was to engage the defendant in conversation that would lead to his detailing his culpability in the uncharged murder. The defendant made incuopatory statements about the uncharged murder to the informant and the special agent.
Issue:  Whetehr an undercover .law enfoercement officer must give Miranda warnings to an incarcerated suspect before aksing him questions that may lead to an incriminating response?
Holding: “Conversations between suspects and undercover agents do not implicate the concerns underlying Miranda.  The essential ingredient of a “police-dominated atomoshere” and compulsion are not present when an incarcerated person speaks freely to someone whom he believes to be a fellow inmate.” At 2397. “Miranda forbids coercion, not mere strategic deception.” At 298.

[bookmark: dabmen_fd3188603e394f63a96b5746b4690087]Pennsylvania v. Muniz, 496 U.S. 582 (1990) (Justice Brennan) (Justice Rehnquist concurred in part, and dissented in regards to the 6th Birthday question being characterized by the Court as testimonial)
Facts: During a DUI investigation, Defendant was 1) asked initial informational questions, including his name, address, height, weight, eye color, date of birth, current age, and the date of his sixth birthday, 2) the Defendant asked questions and made utterances during the DUI investigations physical dexterity and balancing tests, and 3) finally the Defendant asked questions and made utterances during the breathayzer tests. Miranda was never given.
Issue: “Whether various incriminating physical actions and various incriminating utterances of a drunken driving suspect, made while performing a series of field sobriety tests, and preparing to take the breathalyzer test constitutes testimonial responses to custodial interrogation for the purposes of the Self-incrimination Clause of the Fifth Amendment”? At 584.
Holding: The Court permitted the routine booking questions, but held that the question about how old the Defendant was on his 6th birthday violated Miranda as it was testimonial in nature. The Court held that the FST’s evidence involving physical coordination and slurred speech were admissible because it was non-testimonial, and therefore not protected by the Fifth Amendment. To trigger Miranda, questions must be testimonial.  The Court found that the statements made by the Defendant, prior to Miranda Warnings, during the FST’s and the administration of the breathalyzer test were not prompted by an interrogation, rather they were limited and focused inquiries based on police testing procedures, and therefore Miranda Warnings were not required.  One of the rules we get out of Muniz is the routine booking questions exception to Miranda.

[bookmark: dabmen_e76eb9cd9f9b40d0af82313aa93d034e]Arizona v. Mauro, 481 U.S. 520 (1987) (Justice Powell; joined by Rehnquist, White, O’Connor, and Scalia)(Justice Steven’s dissent; joined by Brennan, Marshall, and Blackmun)
Facts:  Defendant was in custody for murdering his child, read his Miranda rights and invoked his right to counsel. Questioning ceased, and then Defendant’s wife who was being questioned in another room insisted upon speaking to her husband. She was allowed to speak with him, with the condition that an officer be present in the room. The officer placed a tape recorder in front of them, and taped the conversation.  During the short conversation Defedant told his wife not to speak to police until a lawyer was present. Defendant later claimed insanity, and the State offered the statements to rebut the insanity defense. The Defense argued the wife being allowed to talk to her husband with an officer standing by, and a tape recorder was the functional equivalent of interrogation. The lower court found that the police did not create the situation as a ruse or subterfuge to get around Miranda, that there was no interrogation, and allowed the statements into evidence. At 524.
Issue:  In the circumstances detailed above, where the police allowed Defedant to speak to his wife in the presence of an officer, was Defendant interrogated in violation of Miranda?
Rule: The Innis court talked about a variety of questioned police practices that could be the functional equivalent of interrogation. Two examples were: 1) psychological ploys, and 2) the use of lineups with fake witnesses. The court found the actions by the police in how they allowed Mauro’s wife to speak to him did not rise to the level of the functional equivalent of interrogation. The Court’ analysis in Mauro was very fact driven.
 

Waivers

[bookmark: dabmci_1baeb78bf7f74552b134640c4c3ce68e][bookmark: dabmen_1baeb78bf7f74552b134640c4c3ce68e][bookmark: dabmci_25a85a83566d4299a0400313bc618e53][bookmark: dabmen_25a85a83566d4299a0400313bc618e53] Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 444 (Justice Earl Warren) “the defendant may waive effectuation of these rights, provided the waiver is made voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently.” Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 444.  “If the interrogation continues without the presence of an attorney and a statement is taken, a heavy burden rests on the government to demonstrate that the defendant knowingly and intelligently waived his privilege against self-incrimination and his right to retained or appointed counsel.” At 475. “An express statement that the individual is willing to make a statement and does not want an attorney followed closely by a statement could constitute a waiver.  But a valid waiver will not be presumed simply from the silence of the accused after warnings are given or simply from the fact that a confession was in fact eventually obtained.”  At 475.  It is difficult to establish waiver without an explicit written waiver. At 475.


[bookmark: dabmen_1c5bb617c46f4383a9460ac84525fd21]North Carolina v. Butler, 441 U.S. 369 (1979) (Justice Stewart) (Justice Blackmun concurring opinion) (Brennan, Marshall, and Stevens dissented) 
Waiver of Right to Counsel 
Facts: Defendant refused to sign an FBI waiver of rights form after being informed of his Miranda rights by an FBI agent investigating the Defendant for kidnapping, felonious assault, and robbery.  Defendant was told that he need neither speak nor sign the form, but that the agents would like him to talk to them.  The Defendant replied, “I will talk to you, but I am not signing any form.” At 371.  The Defendant then made inculpatory statements. The FBI agent testified that at no time did the Defendant request to speak to counsel, nor attempt to terminate questioning.  Prior to questioning, the agents determined that the Defendant had an 11th grade education and he could read and write.
[bookmark: dabmci_535f1405087045bd96b6fee22f9d67df][bookmark: dabmen_535f1405087045bd96b6fee22f9d67df]Issue:  Does Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, require an explicit waiver of the right to the presence of an attorney at the time the statement was made in order for the statement of a person subjected to custodial interrogation to be admitted into evidence against him?
Holding: Miranda does not require an express waiver of Miranda rights to remain silent and right to counsel.
[bookmark: dabmci_ea8c754d8c434609a4dcd9804b873cdc][bookmark: dabmen_ea8c754d8c434609a4dcd9804b873cdc][bookmark: dabmci_4949b5b31360435b919e24de245fdb2e][bookmark: dabmen_4949b5b31360435b919e24de245fdb2e]The Court’s Waiver Discussion in Butler: “an express written waiver or oral statement of waiver of the right to remain silent or of the right to counsel is usually strong proof of validity of that waiver, but is not inevitably either necessary or sufficient to establish waiver. The question is not one of form, but rather whether the defendant in fact knowingly, and voluntarily waived the rights delineated in the Miranda case.  As was unequivocally said in Miranda, mere silence is not enough.  That does not mean the defendant’s, coupled with an understanding of his rights and a course of conduct indicating waiver, may never support a conclusion that a defendant has waived his rights.  The courts must presume that a defendant did not waive his rights; the prosecution’s burden is great; but in at least some cases waiver can be clearly inferred from the actions and words of the person interrogated. At.  373.

Rule of Waiver in My Words
· Express waiver not required to show Miranda Rights were waived.
· Refusal to sign a written waiver does not mean Miranda Rights were waived.
· A waiver can be inferred from the actions and words of the person interrogated.





[bookmark: dabmen_4f3a01062449481ab88cde849312c438]Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458, 464
This case gives us a general rule for waiver of rights when the court stated the question of waiver must be determined by “the particular facts and circumstances surrounding that case, including the background, experience, and conduct of the accused.” 

Invoking Right to Counsel

[bookmark: dabmci_df6f446f9155489198eda6c3e8848285][bookmark: dabmen_df6f446f9155489198eda6c3e8848285]“If, however, he indicates in any manner and at any stage of the process that he wishes to consult with an attorney before speaking there can be no questioning.  Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 444-445.

[bookmark: dabmci_44e1c667dedd4512bae2039a8bc7323c][bookmark: dabmen_44e1c667dedd4512bae2039a8bc7323c]“The mere fact that he may have answered some questions or volunteered some statements on his own does not deprive him of the right to refrain from answering any further inquiries until he has consulted with an attorney and thereafter consents to be questioned.” Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S.436, 444 -445.

[bookmark: dabmci_4a4a3df83c964140aa82996ef9a1ee1b][bookmark: dabmen_4a4a3df83c964140aa82996ef9a1ee1b]“If the individual states that he wants an attorney, the interrogation must cease until an attorney is present.”  Miranda at 474.

[bookmark: dabmen_d699abcfc2e04d8b977ff5ea6be61287]Fare v. Michael C., 442 U.S. 707 (1979) (Justice Blackmun) (Marshall Dissenting Opinion; joined by Brennan & Stevens; Powell Dissenting Opinion)
Probation Officer Cannot Substitute for Attorney
Facts: Michael C, a 16 ½ year old, confessed to murder after he was taken to police station, Mirandized and questioned. Prior to his confession the following dialogue took place in regards to the Miranda Warnings: 
Q: Do you understand these rights as I have explained to you?
A: Yeah.
Q: Okay, do you wish to give up your right to remain silent and to talk to us about this murder?
A: What Murder?
Q: I’ll explain to you which one it is if you want to talk to us about it.
A: Do you want to give up your right to have an attorney present here while we talk about it?
A: Can I have my probation officer here?
Q: Well, I can’t get a hold of your probation officer right now.  You have the right to an attorney.
A: How I know you guys won’t pull no police officer in and tell me he’s an attorney?
Q: Your probation officer is Mr. Christensen.
A: Yeah.
Q: Well, I’m not going to call Mr. Christiansen tonight.  There’s a good chance we can talk to him later, but I’m not going to call him right now.  If you want to talk to us without an attorney present, you can.  If you don’t want to you don’t have to. But, if you want to say something, you can, and if you don’t want to say something you don’t have to. That’s your right.  You understand that right? 
A: Yeah.
Q: Okay, will you talk to us without an attorney present?
A: Yeah, I want to talk to you.
At 710-711.
Issue: Whether a juveniles request while being interrogated to see his probation officer is the equivalent of a request for an attorney, and is a per se invocation of his Fifth Amendment rights requiring interrogation to cease?
Holding: “The per se aspect of Miranda was thus based on the unique role the lawyer plays in the adversary system of criminal justice in this country.  Whether it is a minor or an adult who stands accused, the lawyer is the one person to whom society as a whole looks as the protector of legal rights of that person in his dealings with the police and the courts.  For this reason, the Court fashioned in Miranda the rigid rule that an accused’s request for an attorney is per se an invocation of his Fifth Amendment rights, requiring that all interrogation cease.” At 719.  “We hold…that it was error to find that the request to speak with a probation officer per se constituted an invocation [Defendant’s] Fifth Amendment right to be free from compelled self-incrimination.” At 724.  In looking at the facts under the totality-of-the-circumstances test Justice Blackmun writing for the majority found that there was a clear waiver of Miranda Rights in this case.
Waiver Discussion by the Court:  “[The] totality-of-the-circumstances approach is adequate to determine whether there has been a waiver even where interrogation of juveniles is involved.” At 725.  The totality approach permits – indeed, it mandates inquiry into all the circumstances surrounding the interrogation. This includes evaluation of the juvenile’s age, experience, education, background, and intelligence, and into whether he has the capacity to understand the warnings given him, the nature of his Fifth Amendment rights, and the consequences of waiving those rights.” At 725 (citing Butler v. North Carolina, 441 at 373).

[bookmark: dabmen_df913e243bf84afc9141374aa7fbef12]Edwards v. Arizona, 451 U.S. 477 (1981) (Justice White) (Rehnquist joined in dissenting opinion) 
Invoking Right to Counsel; there is a presumption of involuntariness if the police reinitiate contact 
Facts: Defendant was arrested and charged with robbery, burglary, and first-degree murder.  Defendant acknowledged understanding his rights and agreed to submit to questioning.  After speaking to the police for some time, Defendant said, “I want an attorney before making a deal.”  Questioning ceased and Defendant was taken to jail.  The next morning, two detectives came to the jail and asked to speak to the Defendant.  A detention officer informed Defendant that detectives wanted to speak to him and he said he did not want to talk to anyone.  The detention officer told him “he had” to talk and took him to the detectives. The detectives told Defendant they wanted to talk to him and read him his Miranda rights.  Defendant said he would make a statement so long as it was not tape-recorded.  “I tell you anything you want to know, but I don’t want it on tape.”  He then implicated himself in the crime.
Holding: The Supreme Court held “that when an accused has invoked his right to have counsel present during custodial interrogation, a valid waiver of that right cannot be established by showing only that he responded to further police-initiated custodial interrogation even if he has been advised of his rights.” The Court further held “that an accused…having expressed his desire to deal with the police only through counsel, is not subject to further interrogation by the authorities until counsel has been made available to him, unless the accused himself initiates further communication, exchanges, or conversations with the police.”  At 484 – 85.

[bookmark: dabmen_87970e25338b4307b1aef99316a8b79d]Edwards v. Arizona Footnote 9
[bookmark: dabmci_5999791b19aa47d8a2a707c96f7c2726][bookmark: dabmen_5999791b19aa47d8a2a707c96f7c2726]“If, as frequently would occur in the course of a meeting initiated by the accused, the conversation is not wholly one-sided, it is likely that the officers will say or do something that clearly will be ‘interrogation.’  In that event, the question would be whether a valid waiver of the right to counsel and the right to silence has occurred, that is, whether the purported waver was knowingly and intelligent and found to be so under the totality of the circumstances, including the necessary fact that the accused, not the police, reopened the dialogue with the authorities. 451 U.S. 477, 486 (1981).

[bookmark: dabmen_613abb0ec7654d15b61bc06f6ee3ea7e]Wyrick v. Fields, 459 U.S. 42(1982) (Per Curiam) (Stevens concurred)(Marshall dissented)(Edward’s argument made by the defense.)
[bookmark: dabmci_9dee6cc483d5436abd72481cd5dfa09a][bookmark: dabmen_9dee6cc483d5436abd72481cd5dfa09a]Facts:  Defendant was charged with rape of an 81 years old woman. He was release and consulted with counsel, and subsequently he requested a polygraph test from law enforcment. At the  time of the polygraph he was out of custody, read his Miranda  right and a UCMJ rights form, and was specifically asked if he wanted a lawyer, to which he said “No.” After the polygraph test, he made inculpatory statements, was read his Miranda Rights again and made inculpatory statements again.  He was  convicted, and appealed arguing he did not knwowingly, intelligently and voluntarily waive his right to counsel under Edwards v. Arizona.
Holding:  The Court said, ‘When the suspect has initiated the  dialogue, Edwards makes clear that the right to have a lawyer present is waived.” At 45.

[bookmark: dabmen_46c6372e014d4fba86e86d36ee2bc5c4]Oregon v. Bradshaw, 462 U.S. 1039 (1983) (Rehnquist Plurality; joined by White & O’Connor) (Powell Concurring) (Marshall Dissent; joined by Brennan, Blackmun & Stevens)
Facts:  Police investigating the vehicular homicide asked Defendant to go to the police station with them for questioning. He was given Miranda Warning and questioned.  During questioning he admitted giving the deceased minor alcohol, and was then placed under arrest for that crime. After being placed under arrest he was once again given his Miranda Warnings.  A police officer then told the Defendant of his theory that Defendant was the driver responsible for the victim’s death.  At that time, the Defendant invoked by stating, “I do want an attorney before it goes very much further.” The officer immediately terminated questioning at that time. Later that day, the Defendant was transported to another jail about fifteen miles away. During or just after transport, the Defendant said to the officer, “Well, what is going to happen to me now?” The officer’s response to the Defendant was that he did not have to talk to him because he requested an attorney. The Defendant said that he understood. There was a brief discussion about where the Defendant was going to be taken, and what he was going to be charged with.  Next the officer suggested that the Defendant might help himself by taking a polygraph test.  The Defendant agreed to take the test. He was given his Miranda Warnings again the next day; he signed a written waiver of his rights, and again agreed to take the test.  At the end of the test, the examiner told Defendant he did not believe his denial, Defendant then recanted, and confessed to the vehicular homicide. 
[bookmark: dabmci_1a5b11a18ed7460fba5dc7758c680d80][bookmark: dabmen_1a5b11a18ed7460fba5dc7758c680d80]Issue: Was the Defendant’s question “What is going to happen to me now?” a Defendant initiated conversation about the subject matter of the criminal investigation as discussed in footnote 9 of Edwards v. Arizona?
Holding: The Court found that the statement, “Well what is going to happen to me now?” was a reinitiating of contact with the police requesting a generalized discussion about the investigation. The court distinguished this statement from “may I have a drink of water” and “can I use the telephone” which the court characterized as so routine that they cannot represent a desire to reinitiate a discussion about the investigation.



[bookmark: dabmen_8c3c6b44f0424e318681515bd225fd31]Connecticut v. Barrett, 479 U.S. 523 (1987) (Rehnquist; joined by White, Blackmun, Powell, O’Connor, & Scalia) (Brennan concurring) (Stevens dissenting; joined by Marshall)
Facts:  Defendant was arrested for sexual assault and given his Miranda Warnings, and signed and dated an acknowledgement that he had received the warnings.  At that time, he stated, “He would not give the police any written statements, but he had no problem in talking about the incident.” Before questioning he was once again given his Miranda Warnings and signed a card acknowledging he had received the warnings. He said he “understood his rights” and “would not give a written statement unless his attorney was present, but that he had ‘no problem talking’ about the incident.”  He then confessed.  Due to a tape recorder malfunction he was given his Miranda Warnings and questioned a second time.  He again said, “He was willing to talk about verbally but he did not want to put anything in writing until his attorney came.”  He once again confessed.  Later at trial Defendant testified that he understood his rights.
Issue: Does a Defendant invoke his right to counsel by refusing to make a written statement without the presence of an attorney?
Holding: No, the court here found the invocation of the right to counsel was limited to making a written statement, and the Defendant had freely chosen to speak with the police.


[bookmark: dabmen_0e82e29b8b2048149a7b7f7c17f4e82f]Arizona v. Roberson, 486 U.S. 675 (1988) (Justice Stevens) (Kennedy and Rehnquist dissent)
Invoking Right to Counsel Under Miranda is not offense specific
Facts: Defendant was arrested at the scene of a recent burglary. Defendant was given Miranda warning and replied that he “wanted a lawyer before answering any questions.” At 678.  That request was memorialized in a police report.  Three days passed and the in-custody Defendant was given Miranda once again and interrogated about a different burglary by a different officer who did not know that Defendant made a request for counsel.  
Holding: Edwards applies to the state of mind of the defendant, not the interrogating officer in regards to coercion. “Edwards’s corollary that if a suspect believes that he is not capable of undergoing questioning without the advice of counsel, then it is presumed that any subsequent waiver that has come at the authorities’ behest, and not at the suspect’s own instigation, is itself the product of the “inherently compelling pressures” and not purely voluntary choice of the suspect.” At 681.  The Court stated, “Mere repetition of Miranda warnings would not overcome the presumption of coercion that is created by prolonged police custody.” At 686.  

[bookmark: dabmen_f6815eb54c3548e195530cfa939f9c2d]Minnick v. Mississippi, 498 U.S. 146 (1990) (Justice Kennedy)
Facts: Defendant was arrested and the FBI sought to interrogate him in connection with his escape from jail and murder of mobile home residents. Defendant invoked his right to counsel and an attorney was provided to him. After the attorney left, the FBI again interrogated the Defendant, who confessed. 
Holding: The Court held that a defendant’s consultation with an attorney between in-cusoty interrogations is not sufficient to end the Edwards presumption of involuntariness.

Maryland v. Shatzer, 599 U.S.98 (2010) (Justice Scalia; joined by Roberts, Kennedy, Ginsburg, Bryer, Alito, & Sotomayor) (Thomas joined in part and concurrence in part) (Stevens concurred in judgment)
Facts: Defendant was serving time in a correctional institution for unrelated charges when child sexual abuse charges surfaced based on the referral of a social worker. A detective came to question Defendant  about the child sexual abuse allegations, and after being read Miranda, Defendant declined to speak without an attorney, and was released back into the general prison population.  Two and one half years passed and Defendant was transferred to a different correctional facility.  The investigation continued, and the same social worker furthered charges, and then went with a different detective, from the same unit as the prior detective, to again interview the Defendant.  They set up three chairs, read the Defendant his rights, obtained a written waiver of those rights after they told Defendant that they wanted to talk to him about the allegation they had approached him about two years ago.  Defendant made incriminating statements during this second interview, and he did not request to talk to an attorney during this second interrogation, nor did he refer to his prior refusal.  Five days later, the detective and another detective returned to the correctional facility, read Miranda Rights to the Defendant, obtained a full confession, and then the Defendant broke down crying and requested an attorney.
Issue: Whether a break in custody ends the presumption of involuntariness established in Edwards v. Arizona?
Holding: The Supreme Court held that a break in custody that is of sufficient duration to dissipate the coercive effects of a custodial interrogation allows police to re-interrogate a Defendant who previously invoked his right to counsel.  The Court found that a break of 14 days was a sufficient duration for a re-interrogation to be lawful.  The Court said, “It seems to us that period is 14 days.  That provides plenty of time for the suspect to get re-acclimated to his normal life, to consult with friends and counsel, and to shake of any residual coercive effects of his prior custody.” At 110.
Miranda Custody v. Incarceration Pursuant to a Conviction Custody:  “[L]awful imprisonment imposed upon conviction of a crime does not create the coercive pressures identified in Miranda.  Shatzer at 112.  The Shatzer court distinguishes the custody of a person convicted of a crime and released back into the general prison population from suspect detention of Edwards, Roberson and Minnick.  At 114.  This case stands for the propostion that the Edwards presumption of involunariness is not “perpetual.” At 116.

[bookmark: dabmen_dd52450af0b948028bce0991156fdc27]Davis v. United States, 512 U.S. 452 (1994) (Justice O’Connor; Scalia concurring; Souter, Blackmun, Stevens and Ginsburg, concurring in judgment)
Right to Counsel Case
Facts: Defendant was a suspect in a murder. He was Mirandized (by Naval equivalent of Miranda) and interviewed by the Naval Investigation Service. An hour and 1/2 into the interview Defendant stated, “maybe I should talk to a lawyer.”  NIS agents testified that in response to the statement the interrogators made it clear to Defedant that if wanted a lawyer that they would then stop questioning, and that they weren’t going to pursue questioning unless they clarified that he was asking for a lawyer as opposed to just making a comment about a lawyer.  NIS said Defendant’s response was, “No, I’m not asking for a lawyer,” and then he said “No, I don’t want a lawyer.” A short break took place, the NIS agents then reminded Defendant of his right to remain silent and his right to counsel.  The interview then went on for another hour and Defedanant said, “I think I want a lawyer before I say anything else.” At. 455.
Holding: The Court affirmed the conviction because equivocal requests or comments regarding an attorney do not require officers to cease questioning and provide counsel.  Defendant must unambiguously assert his right to counsel. The Court expressly “decline[d] to adopt a rule requiring officers to ask calrifying questions,” and stated, “If the suspects statement is not an unambiguous or unequivocal request for counsel, the officers have no obligation to stop questioning him. At. 461-462. Souter’s Concurrence, 

[bookmark: dabmci_ae19082cb9684d398e12ec5d43f3e2a5][bookmark: dabmen_ae19082cb9684d398e12ec5d43f3e2a5]Arizona v. Eastlack, 180 Ariz. 243 (1994)
Facts: Defedant was read his Miranda Rights, and then questioned. During the questioning Defendant stated, “I think I better talk to a lawyer first.”  The Detective then asked a clarifying question, “Okay. Does that mean you don’t want to talk to me anymore?” The Defendant resonded, “Not about that, no. What about the burglaries?”
Rational:The [Davis] Court decided that the threshhold [to decideing if a defendant invoked his right to counsel] approach is the correct approach, and it defined the threshold standard as follows:  It is an objective inquiry under which the suspects “must articlulate his desire to have counsel present sufficiently clearly that a reasonable police offier in the circumstances would understand the statement to be a request for an attorney.” At. 250.
Holding:  The Arizona Supreme court found th at Defedant’s request for counsel was not “clear under the circumstances” and that it was “ambiguous, using the equivocal language “I think” rather than the language of a clear request.” At 251.

[bookmark: dabmen_c2c1b130618044fcae42400be4cff379]Smith v. Illinois, 469 U.S. 91 (1984) (Per Curiam)(Rehnquist dissented, joined by Powell)
Facts:  An 18 year old Defendant was arrested and clearly requested counsel during Miranda Warnings.   
Q: Okay. But before I do that I must advise you of your rights. Okay? You have a right to remain silent. You do not have to talk to me unless you want to do so. Do you understand that?
A: Uh. She told me to get my lawyer. She said you gusy would railroad me.
Q: Do you understand that as I gave it to you, Steve?
A: Yeah.
Q: If you do want to talk to me I must advise you that whatever you say can and will be used against you in a court. Do you understand that?
A: Yeah.
Q: You have a right to consult with a lawyer and to have a lawyer present with you when you’re being questioned. Do you understand that?
A: Uh, yeah. I’d like to do that.
At this point questioning wasn’t terminated, rather the Detectives continued to read Defendant his Miranda Rights and continued to question him about speaking with them.
Q: If you want a lawyer and you’re unable to pay for one a lawyer will be appointed to represent you free of cost, do you understand that?
A: Okay.
Q; Do you wish to talk to me at this time without a lawyer being present?
A: Yeah and no, uh, I don’t know what, really. 
Q: Well, You either have [to agree] to talk to me this time without a lawyer being present and if you do agree to talke with me without a lawyer being present you can stop at any time you want to.
A: all right. I’ll talk with you then.”  
Procedural History:  The state appellate court found Defendant’s first request for counsel clear and unequivocal, but considered the request with other postrequest statements to find the that Defedant was “undecided about excercising his right to counsel” and that he “never made an effective request for counsel.”At 493.
Holding: “An accused’s postrequest responses to futher interrogation may not be used to cast retrospective doubt on the clarity of the intital request”for counsel. At 494.

Invoking Right to Silence

[bookmark: dabmci_c7ae3771b03545218e3ac5b7c14fa0de][bookmark: dabmen_c7ae3771b03545218e3ac5b7c14fa0de][I]f the individual is alone and indicates in any manner that he does not wish to be interrogated, the police may not question him.” Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436

[bookmark: dabmci_d8c6da844fcf47ccac046d8491bdf994][bookmark: dabmen_d8c6da844fcf47ccac046d8491bdf994]“Presuming waiver from a silent record is impermissible.  The record must show, or there must be an allegation and evidence which show, that an accused was offered counsel but intelligently and understandingly rejected the offer.  Anything less is not waiver.” Miranda, at 475.

[bookmark: dabmci_043f0e95c60d483da9b9564073128355][bookmark: dabmen_043f0e95c60d483da9b9564073128355]“Accordingly, we hold that an individual held for interrogation must be clearly informed that he has the right to consult with a lawyer and to have the lawyer with him during interrogation under the system for protecting the privilege we delineate today.  As with the warning of the right to remain silent and that anything stated can be used in evidence against him, this warning is an absolute prerequisite to interrogation.”  Miranda, at 471.

[bookmark: dabmci_5901efe130db48359b7f6774890811ba][bookmark: dabmen_5901efe130db48359b7f6774890811ba]“Once warnings have been given, the subsequent procedure is clear.  If the individual indicates in any manner, at any time prior to or during questioning, that he wishes to remain silent, the interrogation must cease.  At this point, he has shown that he intends exercise his Fifth Amendment privilege; any statement taken after the person invokes his privilege cannot be other than the product of compulsion, subtle or otherwise.  Miranda at 473-474.

[bookmark: dabmen_a9a3524bb1d4440ea9c438aaba9748b3]Michigan v. Mosley, 423 U.S. 96 (1975) (Justice Stewart)
Invoking Right to Remain Silent Case – Invoking does not mean a permanent immunity from further interrogation
Facts: Robbery detectives arrested Defendant Mosley and took him to the Robbery Bureau on the fourth floor of the police building. They read him his rights, and had him sign a certificate stating that he understood his rights.  Defendant said he did not want to answer any questions about the robberies, and Detective Cowie ceased the interrogation.  This first round of questioning lasted approximately 20 minutes, and did not involve a request to consult with a lawyer.  Defendant was then taken to a ninth floor cell block.  Over two hours later, a homicide detective, Hill, took Defendant from the ninth floor to the 5th Floor Homicide Bureau to question him about a murder during a holdup.  Defendant had not been arrested nor questioned about this murder by the first interrogator, Detective Cowie. Detective Hill read and explained Miranda warnings to Defendant and gave him a rights form which he read and signed. He initially denied involvement in the homicide, but then confessed.  The second interrogation lasted 15 minutes, and Defendant did not ask to consult with a lawyer or indicate that he did not want to discuss the homicide, and he was questioned in interview two about a crime different in nature and time and place from the crime in interview one.
Holding: The Supreme Court held that when the questioning was for different crimes, by a different police officer, in a different station, after an extended period without questioning, the request to remain silent had been scrupulously honored.
The Supreme Court found that this case hinged on the paragraph “’if the individual indicates in any manner, at any time he wishes to remain silent, the interrogation must cease.” 
Rationale:  Miranda does not state what circumstances, if any, allow for a resumption of questioning. 
Rule: The Supreme Court held that in right to remain silent cases “the admissibility of statements obtained after the person in custody had decided to remain silent depends on whether his ‘right to cut off questioning’ was scrupulously honored.” At  104.

[bookmark: dabmci_d1c712a37792472e9b8a7e4b079fc92e][bookmark: dabmen_d1c712a37792472e9b8a7e4b079fc92e][bookmark: dabmci_4c14bdeba999477c88912f42ce115809][bookmark: dabmen_4c14bdeba999477c88912f42ce115809]Berghuis v. Thompkins, 394 U.S 324 (2010) (Kennedy Plurality Opinion) 
Invoking Right to Remain Silent Case (Post Arrest Silence Case) Waiver of Right to Silence
Facts: Prior to interrogating the in-custody Defendant about a murder, detectives gave him a Miranda rights card to read, and then asked him to read the fifth warning out loud to determine if the Defendant could read.  Defendant complied, and detective then read the other four rights out loud, and asked the Defendant to sign the rights card.  Defendant declined to sign.  During the entire interrogation Defendant never said he wanted to remain silent, never said he did not want to talk to the police and never said he wanted counsel.  The Detective after two hours and 45 minutes of pretty much silence from the Defendant had the following dialogue with him:
Do you believe in God? Yes.
Do you pray to God? Yes.
Do you pray to God to forgive you for shooting that boy down? Yes.
Subsequnet to that dialogue Defendant refused to make a written confession.
 SCOTUS Said: “There is no principled reason to adopt different standards for determining when a accused has invoked the Miranda right to reamin silent and the Miranda right to counsel at issue in Davis.”  At. 381. Scotus also discussed facts in the case that indicated waiver: 1) the Defendant answering questions asked by the officer, 2) the fact the Defendnat did not indicate that he did not understand his Miranda Rights, 3) the fact that there was no evidence that the Defendant’s statements were coerced, and 4) the fact that the Defendant read the 5th warning outloud. 
Holding: The Supreme Court rejected Defendant’s Miranda claim and held that a Defendant who has received and understood the Miranda warnings, and has not invoked his Miranda rights, waives the right to remain silent by making an un-coerced statement to the police. This is one of many cases that stand for the proposition that suspects is required unambiguously to assert their right to remain silent. “Even absent the accused’s invocation of the the right to remain silent, the accused’s statement during a custoidal interrogation is not admissible during trial unless the prosecution can establish that the accused “in fact knowingly and voluntarily waived [Miranda] rights” when making the statement”  At. 383.



[bookmark: dabmen_4d85237e14a94712b6427f82b08ad31b]State v. Szpyrka, 220 Ariz. 59 (2008) 
Invoking Right to Remain Silent
Facts: During a custodial investigation, Defendant was given Miranda warnings and the following dialogue occurred: 
Detective:	Okay, having been advised of those rights and understanding those right[s], you still want to talk to me?
Defendant:	I got nothing’ to say.
Detective: 	All right.  So is that a no?
Defendant: 	I ain’t got nothing to say.
Detective: 	Okay, Steve, I just need a yes or no. It’s kind of a technical question.  Do you…want to give your side of the story, yes or no?
Defendant: 	Okay, yes.
Detective: 	Yes?  Okay. You want to answer questions if I ask them?
Defendant:  	Ah, perhaps, I’m not gonna say anything…
Detective: 	Well, you can stop the questioning at any time you want.
Defendant: 	Okay.

Holding: “If however, a defendant’s invocation is ambiguous, officers may ask questions designed solely to clarify whether the defendant’s intended to invoke his right to remain silent.  The rule, however, permits “clarification,” not questions that, though clothed in the guise of “clarification” are designed to, or operate to, delay, confuse, or burden the suspect in his assertion of the rights.  Because such questions serve to keep the suspect talking, not to uphold his right to remain silent, they constitute unlawful “interrogation,” not permissible clarification. At 62.


The Two-Stage Interrogation 

[bookmark: dabmen_61320353eb854c5dbbc79a2e658561d4]Oregon v. Elstad, 470 U.S. 298 (1985) 
Unwarned Phase One, Warned Phase Two
Facts: Eighteen year old Elstad was arrested in his home for burglary, was briefly interrogated and gave an un-Mirandized incriminating statement.  He was taken to the police station and an hour later was Mirandized and then confessed. Officers subsequently typed up the confession and Elstad signed it.  His lawyer argued the second Mirandized statement was involuntary because, the first un-Mirandized statement “let the cat out of the bag.” 
Holding: The Supreme Court held that “[t]he relevant inquiry is whether, in fact, the second statement was also voluntarily made. At any such inquiry, the finder of fact must examine the surrounding circumstances and the entire course of police conduct with respect to the suspect in evaluating the voluntariness of the statement.” At 318.  The Court also stated that the Fourth Amendments Fruits Doctrine does not apply to Miranda.




[bookmark: dabmen_6901234bcb6f4ba1b8ce4438131ae9d1]Missouri v. Seibert, 542 U.S. 600 (2004) (Justice Souter) (Kennedy concurred)
Facts: This case involved police protocol for custodial interrogation where an officer would obtain a confession without Miranda warnings, then administer the Miranda warning and lead the suspect to repeat the statement he made during the unwarned confession.  Police officer said this strategy of withholding warnings was a policy of not only his department, but a national police training organization.  The warned phase of the questioning took place in the same location as the unwarned phase of the questioning, and only after a 20 minute pause.  The officer who conducted the unwarned phase of questioning also gave the Miranda warnings in the warned phase of questioning.
Holding: The Supreme Court held that “this midstream recitation of [Miranda] warnings after interrogation and unwarned confession could not effectively comply with
“The taint has not dissipated through the passing of time or change in circumstances.” 
Pre-warning statements and post-warning statements were held inadmissible.

[bookmark: dabmen_282d16a7472b45e3b799047e7ecd031e]State v. Zamora, 220 Ariz. 63 (Ariz. Ct. App. 2009)
Facts: Police asked Defendant general questions about what he was doing in a vacant apartment without Mirandizing him. When Defendant tried to leave, officers told him to sit down. They asked follow-up questions about why he decided to stay in the apartment and Defendant told them he had only been there for a few minutes and had wanted to leave. Officers arrested him, then Mirandized him and asked him to repeat his story after the warnings were given. 
Holding: If there is evidence the pre-Miranda warning statements were coerced or involuntary, then the post-Miranda statements are admissible only if the taint dissipated through the passing of time or a change in circumstances. Under Seibert, courts should review two-step interrogation cases by first determining whether the police deliberately withheld the Miranda warnings. To determine deliberateness, courts should consider whether objective evidence and any available subjective evidence support an inference that the two-step interrogation procedure was used to undermine the Miranda warning.

[bookmark: dabmen_33f9f66188a349219576b3321362935b]Warden v. Dixon, 132 S.Ct. 26 (2011) (Per Curiam):
[bookmark: dabmci_f11d9a76761040dfb16317311aafc474][bookmark: dabmen_f11d9a76761040dfb16317311aafc474]Facts: Defendant was first interviewed at the police station during the missing person phase of a murder investigation, He was not in custody during the first interview, nevertheless he was given his Miranda warnings by detectives, and invoked his right to counsel.  Five days later, the police arrested Defendant for the forgery of the title of the murder victim’s car, and during interview number two the detectives deliberately chose not to give Defendant Miranda warnings, out of fear that he would refuse to speak with them again.  Police tried to get Defendant to confess, claiming his co-defendant was making statements against him, and he professed his innocence in regards to the forgery (Although Dixon professed his innocence in regards to the forgery, the statements he made about that crime were viwed as inculpatory in the SCOTUS analysis.), and lack of knowledge in regards to the dissapearnce of the victim. Defendant was then  taken to a correctional facility and booked on the forgery.  The first interrogation (Interview two) that day began at 11:30 and ended at 3:30.  Four hours later, Defendant was transported back to the police station and interrogated  (Interview three) about the murder.  Prior to any police questioning, Defendant asked the police about his co-defendant, and stated, “I talked to my attorney, and I want to tell you what happened.”  He was read his Miranda rights, signed a waiver of rights and confessed to the murder.
Police Tactic Used Here:  Question first, warn-later interrogation tactic.
Holding: The Supreme Court discussed that it had “never held that a person can invoke his Miranda rights anticipatorily, in a context other than ‘custodial interrogation.’”   At. 29.  The Court distinguished this case from Seibert on the basis that there was no earlier confession to repeat, four hours passed between Defendant’s unwarned interrogation and the receipt of Miranda rights, during which he traveled to the jail and back again and claimed to have spoken with his lawyer.  The Court held that “this significant break in time and dramatic change in circumstances created ‘a new distinct experience,’ ensuring that Dixon’s prior unwarned interrogation did not undermine the effectiveness of the Miranda warnings he received” before confessing to the murder. At 32.  The Court also distinguished the interrogation facts in Dixon from the interrogation facts in Siebert.  Unlike Seibert, the court noted, Dixon did not make an unwarned confession, was then given Miranda warnings, and then was asked to repeat an earlier confession. The Court also distinguished Seibert from Dixon, by noting the fact that in Sibert the “warned and unwarned confesssions blended into one continuum.”  At 32.  That there was not break in time in Seibert, while there was in Dixon, and that there was a change in circumstances during the break in time in Dixon.  At 32.

[bookmark: dabmen_3f09025c0e544cedbd27a89d2e99b99c]Fellers v. United States, 540 U.S. 519 (2004) (O’Connor)
Facts: Following Grand Jury indictment, officers went to Defendant’s house to arrest him. Defendant invited them into his home and officers advised him that they had an arrest warrant due to an indictment for meth charges. Officers also named four other individuals involved, and Defendant admitted to knowing them and made inculpatory statements. Officers then arrested him, took him to the station and Mirandized him.
[bookmark: dabmci_b0aeb1ba6c524f50b04199ca01037c67][bookmark: dabmen_b0aeb1ba6c524f50b04199ca01037c67]Holding: The Court held that the court of appeals erroneously determined that the defendant was not questioned in violation of the Sixth Amendment standards, and therefore improperly conducted its “fruits” analysis under the Fifth Amendment by applying Elstad.” At  525.  “The Sixth Amendment right to counsel is triggered “at or after the time that judicial proceedings have been initiated …’whether by way of formal charge, preliminary hearing, indictment, information, or arraignment.’” Fellers quoting Brewer v. Williams, 430 U.S. 387, 389. The Sixth Amendment bars postindictment questioning in the absence of  counsel unless the Defedant waives his right to counsel. This case was remanded to determine if Elstad applies when there  has been a valid waiver of counsel after an earlier postindictment violation of a Sixth Amendment right to counsel.
Exception and Shortcomings

[bookmark: dabmen_ac63247bae3f4ab1adda06d80ae0d21a]Harris v. New York, 401 U.S. 222 (1971) (Justice Burger) (Black Dissenting; Brennan joined Dissenting joined by Douglas, Marshall)
Facts: The State did not seek to introduce unwarned statements Defendant made to officers in its case in chief.  During trial, two police officers testified that Defendant twice sold undercover officers heroin. Defendant then took the stand and partially contradicted his unwarned statements. The trial judge allowed the prosecution to impeach the Defendant with his unwarned statements, and for the jury to consider the statements for impeachment purposes.
Holding: The Court held that unwarned statements were admissible for impeachment. “The shield provided by Miranda cannot be perverted into a license to use perjury by way of a defense, free from the risk of confrontation with prior inconsistent utterances.  We hold therefore that petitioner’s credibility was appropriately impeached by use of his earlier conflicting statements.” At 226.
Analysis: This case substantially eroded Miranda because it essentially held that Miranda warnings were not afforded the same protections as other constitutional rights.
Burger says in his discussion, “It is one thing to say that the Government cannot make an affirmative use of evidence unlawfully obtained.  It is quite another to say that the defendant can turn illegal method by which evidence in the Government’s possession was obtained to his own advantage, and provide himself with a shield against contradiction of his untruth.”  At 224.

[bookmark: dabmen_617cc57a205641e0b6250eec0586f38d]Oregon v. Hass, 420 U.S. 714 (1975) (Justice Blackmun) (Justice Brennan dissented and was joined by Marshall) (Justice Marshall dissented and was joined by Brennan)
Facts: Defendant was arrested for theft of bicycles, Mirandized and made exculpatory statements to an officer.  On the drive to the police station Defendant invoked his right to counsel, and was told by the officer that he “could telephone his attorney as soon as” they got to the police station. Subsequently, Defendant pointed out the location of the bikes while en-route to the police station. The trial court granted a motion to suppress the statements made after Defendant said he wanted to see an attorney. At trial, the Defendant testified inconsistently with his prior statements that the court ruled were obtained in violation of Miranda, the prosecution was then allowed to call the officer in rebuttal to testify about the statements that had been precluded pursuant to Miranda.  At the request of the defense, the jury was given a limiting instruction that they could not use the rebuttal testimony as substantive evidence, only as evidence of credibility.
[bookmark: dabmci_d559fff1d9ca4ba3a59d44d356682fe0][bookmark: dabmen_d559fff1d9ca4ba3a59d44d356682fe0][bookmark: dabmci_a3bc4038ba5243c59bc704310e26bdcf][bookmark: dabmen_a3bc4038ba5243c59bc704310e26bdcf]Holding:   Even if police complete the required Miranda safeguards and the suspect invokes, and then the police continue to question the suspect, the statements can be used for impeachment if they were voluntary. The Court used the same rational in Hass that it used in the Harris v. New York, 401 U.S. 222(1971), “the shield provided by Miranda is not to be perverted to a license to testify inconsistently, or even perjurously, free from the risk of confrontation with prior inconsistent utterances.” At 722. 

[bookmark: dabmen_7d8318d9d5024bc8882977b1e0e39148]Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. 471 (1963)
[bookmark: dabmci_eb2e7af930f14f789e97d5241f6dc226][bookmark: dabmen_eb2e7af930f14f789e97d5241f6dc226]Holding:   In Wong Sun the court suppressed evidence discovered through statements made by the Defendant after an illegal arrest.  The holding was that derivative evidence obtained from an illegal arrest was inadmissible against the accused at trial.  

[bookmark: dabmen_af729e5f861a410894d21763d936cc88]United States v. Patane, 542 U.S. 630 (2004) (Per Curiam Opinion): (Justice Thomas, Joined by Rehnquist and Scalia) (Kennedy Concurrence, Joined by O’Connor) (Souter Dissent, Joined by Stevens and Ginsburg) (Per Curiam Opinion) (Breyer Dissenting, “I would extend to this context “the fruit of the poisonous tree” approach.) 
Facts: Officers went to Defendant’s home to investigate claims that Defendant was violating a restraining order and was illegally in possession of a pistol. They arrested Defendant and began to Mirandize him, but Defendant interrupted the officers to tell them he knew his rights. The officers then asked questions about the pistol and Defendant made inculpatory statements. The trial court allowed the physical fruit of the unwarned confession, a Glock, into evidence.
Issue:  Whether a failure to give a suspect the warnings required by Miranda requires the suppression of the physical fruits of the unwarned but voluntary statement?
Holding: No. The physical fruits of voluntary, unwarned statements need not be suppressed – there is nothing to deter. “Because the Miranda rule protects against violations of the Self-Incrimination Clause, which in turn, is not implicated by the introduction at trial of physical fruits resulting from voluntary statements, we answer the question presented in the negative.”  At 631.  Wong Sun’s Fruit of the poisonous tree doctrine does not apply to Miranda violations.  
Rationale: Miranda is based on the Fifth Amendment’s self-incrimination clause, and the Fifth Amendment is not concerned with non-testimonial evidence.  


[bookmark: dabmen_7c98f132133e4b9ca66300176b8ce0f0]Michigan v. Tucker, 417 U.S. 433 (1974) (Justice Rehnquist) (Justice Stewart concurring opinion) (Justice Brennan concurring opinion and was joined by Justice Marshall) (Justice Douglas dissenting opinion)
Facts: The facts of this case predated the Miranda decision. Police investigating a rape arrested Defendant and took him to the station for questioning. Police gave him his rights, except did not tell Defendant that he could have an attorney provided to him if he could not afford one. Defendant responded that he understood and knew his rights. Defendant did not implicate himself but gave the police derivative evidence by telling officers he had been with a friend. The friend subsequently implicated Defendant.
Issue: The issue before the court was whether police could use derivative evidence when there had been a Miranda violation?
Holding: The Court allowed the State to use the derivative evidence even where the evidence had been obtained through an improper application of Miranda. This case also eroded Miranda because it held that a Miranda violation doesn’t have the same standing as a constitutional violation (for which a breach would lead to exclusion of the evidence). Wong Sun Doctrine was found to be inapplicable to Miranda violations.

[bookmark: dabmen_43129c01778f44e78de26c3d70c09aa7]New York v. Quarles, 467 U.S. 649 (1984) (Justice Rehnquist):
Public Safety exception to Miranda
Facts: Police had reason to believe that Defendant had a gun, but did not find one in Defendant’s holster after frisking him. After handcuffing him, Officer Kraft asked Defendant where the gun was.  Defendant nodded in the direction of some empty cartons and responded, “The gun is over there.” At 652.
Holding: The Supreme Court held “…on these facts there is a “public safety exception to the requirement that Miranda warnings be given before a suspect answers may be admitted into evidence, and that the availability of the exception does not depend upon the motivation of the individual officers involved.” At 655.


Probation

[bookmark: dabmen_df22eaa73bae40a99396ef80211a4e91]Minnesota v. Murphy, 465 U.S. 420 (1984) (Justice White)  
Facts: Defendant was twice questioned for the rape and murder of a teenage girl, but was not charged.  Six years later he was placed on probation or a different sex offense. The terms of Defendant’s probation required that he participate in a sex offender treatment program, report to his probation officer as directed and be truthful with his probation officer in “all matters.”  Defendant made incriminating statements about the rape and murder during treatment.  His therapist notified his probation officer, who then questioned him with the intention to gather information for the police to aide in their investigation. 
Holding: The Court held that probation officers are not required to read Miranda warnings to persons not in custody. Because Defendant revealed incriminating information in a non-custodial setting, instead of timely asserting his privilege against self-incrimination, his disclosures were not compelled incriminations.  

Enshrinement of Miranda 

[bookmark: dabmen_b6902dc5bccf49e4b66209e85a42cbaf]Dickerson v. United States, 530 U.S. 428 (Justice Rehnquist; joined by Stevens, O’Connor, Kennedy, Souter, Ginsburg, & Bryer) (Scalia dissenting), joined by Thomas) 
Miranda Cannot be Overruled by Statute
“Miranda announced a constitutional rule that Congress may not supersede legislatively.”
Facts: A federal statute tried to legislate back to a voluntariness standard.  Dickerson was arrested on Federal charges and the FBI failed to read him his Miranda rights, and obtained a non-warned statement from him.  The trial court granted a Defense motion to suppress based on a violation of Miranda, but the Court of Appeals overturned that ruling based on a finding that federal statue 3501 which legislated that the admissibility of a Defendants’ in-custody statement in criminal cases would be determined by a voluntariness test.  A totality test that Miranda said was inadequate to protect against coerced confessions.
Holding: The Supreme Court held “that Miranda announced a constitutional rule that Congress may not supersede legislatively.” At 444. Rehnquist (who had written many of the Miranda erosion cases) writes in Dickerson: “we do not think there is such a justification for overruling Miranda.  Miranda has become embedded in routine police practice to the point where the warnings have become part of our national culture.”  At 443.
[bookmark: dabmci_5c4b56fba03847fdbafc3942065df36b][bookmark: dabmen_5c4b56fba03847fdbafc3942065df36b]Rehnquist Rational:   “The Miranda opinion itself begins by stating that the Court granted certiorari “to explore some facets of the problems …of applying the privilege against self-incrimination to in-custody interrogation and to give concrete constitutional guidelines for law enforcement agencies and courts to follow.” 384 U.S. at 441-44.
(Emphasis added)  In fact, the majority opinion is replete with statements indicating that the majority thought it was announcing a constitutional rule. Dickerson at 2334 -2335.



Use of a Defendant’s Silence Against Him

[bookmark: dabmen_b98ce410607b403898608050c44bd2cb]Griffin v. California, 380 U.S. 609 (1965) (Justice Douglas)
Comments on refusal to testify
Facts: In a murder trial, the prosecutor commented on Defendant’s refusal to testify. The comments included the following during closing argument:
“These things he has not seen fit to take the stand and deny or explain.”
“And in the whole world, if anybody would know, this defendant would know.”
“Essie Mae is dead, she can’t tell you her side of the story. The defendant won’t.”
Subsequent to the above testimony, the trial judge instructed the jury that “ a defendant has a constitutional right not to testify,” and that the defendant’s exercise of that right “does not create a presumption of guilt or by itself warrant an inference of guilt” nor “relieve the prosecutor of any of its burden of proof.”  The trial court went on to instruct the jury that they could “take that failure into consideration as tending to indicate the truth of the [State’s] evidence and as indicating that among inferences that may be reasonably drawn therefrom those unfavorable to the defendant are more probable.” At. 1230.
Issue:  Whether it is a violation of the 5th and 14th Amendments to invite a jury in a state criminal trial to draw an unfavorable inference from a defendant’s failure to testify?
Holding: The Fifth Amendment prohibits a prosecutor from commenting on a defendant’s failure to testify. It also forbids the court from giving an instruction that a defendant’s silence is evidence of guilt. At 1233.  A criminal defendant need not take the stand and assert the privilege at his own trial. That a prosecutor on his own accord cannot ask a jury to draw an adverse inference from a defendant’s silence.

[bookmark: dabmen_64d1fa33c12d4a05b216704e26f8b221]United States v. Hale, 422 U.S. 171 (1975) (Justice Marshall)
Facts: The Defendant was arrested for robbery, read his rights, questioned by police about the money in his pocket, and remained silent. He then testified at trial and gave an explanation for the money he had in his pocket, and the State then impeached him with his post arrest silence.
Q: Did you in any way admit to the police where the money came from? 
A: No, I didn’t.
Q; Why not?
A: I didn’t feel it was necessary at the time.
Subsequent to the questioning, the trial court refused to declare a mistrial, but instructed the jury to disregard the line of questioning.
Issue:  Whether the Defendant can be cross-examined about his silence during police interrogation?
Holding: The court didn’t base it’s decision here on constitutional grounds (Justice Douglas criticizes the court for this and states “I do not accept the idea that Miranda loses its force in the context of impeaching the testimony of a witness.”), rather it held the prejudicial impact of admitting the evidence, outweighed the probative value of admitting the evidence. In its reasoning the court found that the pre-trial silence and Defendant’s testimony of how he obtained the money were not inconsistent statements.  The court talked about silence as being ambiguous and having little probative value in cases where a Defendant remains silent after being read his rights because it would be just as likely that a person would follow the advice given in Miranda as it would be for a person to dispute an untrue accusation.



[bookmark: dabmen_105489ab93064db8a5207c73335a798a]Doyle v. Ohio, 426 U.S. 610 (1976) (Justice Powell):
Miranda Rights given post-arrest
Facts: Defendant was given Miranda warnings and invoked his rights. At trial, Defendant took the stand and the State tried to use the fact that Defendant invoked his Miranda rights against him. The dialogue was as follows:
“Q. (By the prosecutor.) . . . You are innocent?
“A. (By Doyle.) I am innocent. Yes Sir.
“Q. That's what you told the police department and Kenneth Beamer when they arrived
“(Continuing.) about your innocence?
“A. . . . I didn't tell them about my innocence. No.
“Q. You said nothing at all about how you had been set up?
“Q. Did Mr. Wood?
“A. Not that I recall, Sir.
“Q. As a matter of fact, if I recall your testimony correctly, you said instead of protesting your innocence, as you do today, you said in response to a question of Mr. Beamer, ‘I don't know what you are talking about.’
“A. I believe what I said, ‘What's this all about?’ If I remember, that's the only thing I said.
“A. I was questioning, you know, what it was about. That's what I didn't know. I knew that I was trying to buy, which was wrong, but I didn't know what was going on. I didn't know that Bill Bonnell was trying to frame me, or what-have-you.
“Q. All right, But you didn't protest your innocence at that time?
“A. Not until I knew what was going on.”
In addition to the questioning, the court allowed the prosecutor in closing to argue about Defendant Doyle’s post-arrest silence.
Issue: Whether a state prosecutor may seek to impeach a defendant’s exculpatory story, told for the first time at trial, by cross-examining the defendant about his failure to have told his story after receiving Miranda warnings at the time of his arrest?
Holding:  “The use for impeachment purposes of a defendant’s silence at the time of arrest and after receiving Miranda warnings violates the due process clause of the fourteenth amendment.” At 619. The Greer decision, citing Doyle, states “Miranda warnings contain an implicit assurance that silence will carry no penalty.” 

[bookmark: dabmen_dcbabe5adf104d7288833cfb9c1d579c]Wainwrights v. Greenfield, 474 U.S. 284 (1986) (Justice Stevens; joined by Brennan, White, Marshall, Blackmun, Powell, and O’Connor) (Rehnquist concurring in results; joined by Burger)
Facts: Defendant was arrested for sexual battery. At the time of his arrest he was given his Miranda Warnings, and he responded that he understood his rights, but wanted to talk to an attorney before making any statements. The Miranda Warnings were given to the Defendant two more times. Once on the ride the police station, and when he arrived at the police station.  Each time he was given his rights the Defendant responded that he would not, that he wanted to talk to an attorney.  The Defendant plead guilty by reason of insanity, and at trial the State used officer testimony recounting how the Defendant invoke his right to remain silent, and his request for an attorney to show a “degree of comprehension inconsistent with a claim of insanity.” 
Issue: Does the Doyle due process rule prevent the use of post-Miranda Warnings silence to overcome an insanity defense”
[bookmark: dabmci_760e947ec6ce471f81064ead7497960e][bookmark: dabmen_760e947ec6ce471f81064ead7497960e]Holding:  The Court found the Rule of Doyle applied in an insanity defense fact pattern.  The Court’s rational was that “it is fundamentally unfair to promise an arrested person that his silence will not be used against him, and thereafter breach the promise” by using the silence against him at trial.  Wainwright at 292.


[bookmark: dabmen_4587178758bc4c95948729880f34ba07]Greer v. Miller, 483 U.S. 756 (1987) (Justice Powell) (Stevens concurring) (Brennan dissenting; joined by Marshall and Blackmun)
Post-arrest silence case
Facts:  Defendant was charged and tried for murder. His co-defendant took a plea and testified against him. Defendant than took the stand and denied participation in the murder on direct examination. The cross examination was as follows: 
Prosecutor: Mr. Defendant how old is you? 
Defendant: 23.
Prosecutor: Why didn’t you tell this story to anybody when you got arrested? 
Defense Counsel: Objection! 
Judge: Sustained. You may approach. 
Defense Counsel: Motion for mistrial. 
Judge: Denied. The judge then instructed the jury that “Ignore the question for the time being.” 
“At the conclusion of the presentation of evidence defense counsel did not renew his objection or request an instruction concerning the prosecutor’s question.” The Judge instructed the Jury to “Disregard questions… to which objections were sustained.” 
Issue:  Whether a prosecutor’s question at trial concerning a criminal defendant’s post arrest silence requires reversal of the defendant’s conviction?
Holding: The Court distinguished this factual scenario from Doyle. In Doyle the trial court permitted the specific inquiry and argument concerning the Defendant’s post-arrest silence and here the objection to the question was sustained, and the jury was instructed to disregard the question.  In dicta the court discusses the prosecutor’s attempt to violate the rule of Doyle by asking an improper question in the presence of the jury being a form of prosecutorial misconduct. So, as a practice pointer you are advised to make a motion for prosecutorial misconduct along with your Doyle motion.

[bookmark: dabmen_e9efec32749240d1b75193344124a04c]Jenkins v. Anderson, 447 U.S. 231 (1980) (Justice Powell):
Pre-arrest silence in the Griffin Line of Cases
Facts: Defendant was charged with murder and testified that he acted in self- defense. During trial, the prosecutor referred to the Defendant’s silence to officers prior to his arrest. The prosecutor also referred to the pre-arrest silence during closing argument. The trial cross-examination is detailed below:
Q: And I suppose you waited for the Police to tell them what happened?
A: No, I didn’t.
Q: I see. 
Q: And how long was it after this day that you were arrested, or that you were taken into custody
(Discussion about dates)
Q: When was the first time that you reported the things you told us in Court today to anybody?
A: Two days after it happened.
Q: And who did you report it to?
A: My probation officer.
Q: Well apart from him.
A: No one.
Q: Who?
A: No, one by my-
Q: Did you ever go to a Police Officer or to anyone else?
A: No, I didn’t.
Q: As a matter of fact, it was two weeks later, wasn’t it?
A: Yes.
Issue: Can the state present to the jury the fact that a defendant was silent prior to arrest? 
Holding: Yes. Reference to a defendant’s pre-arrest silence by a prosecutor does not violate the Fifth or Fourteenth Amendments. 


[bookmark: dabmen_9f15292007fc46fbb188b431c7072bac]Fletcher v. Weir, 455 U.S. 603 (1982) (Per Curiam) 
Post-arrest silence
Facts: Defendant was arrested for a stabbing at a nightclub. He took the stand and claimed self-defense. The prosecutor asked him why he had not told the officers that he had acted in self-defense, even though he had not been Mirandized.  
Issue: May a prosecutor use a defendant’s post-arrest silence for impeachment purposes when Miranda warnings were not given?
Holding: The Court held that, in the absence of Miranda warnings, it is not a violation of Due Process to allow the government to cross-examine a defendant on his post-arrest silence when he chose to take the stand.

[bookmark: dabmen_eec2e290b0eb4175be7294f981b7ab69]Salinas v. Texas, 133 S.Ct. 2174 (2013) (Justice Alito joined by Roberts and Kennedy) (Byrer, Ginsburg, and Sotomayor dissented) (Plurality Opinion):
Facts: Without being placed in custody, Defendant made voluntary unwarned statements during an interrogation, but remained silent in response to a specific factual question.  At trial, the prosecutor argued that Defendant’s silence in reaction to officer’s question showed he was guilty.
Issue:  Whether the prosecutor may use a defendant’s assertion of the privilege against self-incrimination during a non-custodial police interview as part of its case in chief.
Holding: A witness does not invoke Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimination by simply standing mute; the general rule is that a witness must assert the privilege to subsequently benefit from it.

[bookmark: dabmen_a99ed909a86248088630d2a9448d4f0f]Estelle v. Smith, 451 U.S. 454 (1981) (Justice Burger)
Facts: Defendant was indicted for capital murder and the court ordered the prosecutor to set up a psychological examination to determine the in-custody defendant’s competency. Prior to the psychiatric examination the Defendant was not warned that he had a right to remain silent and that any statements he made could be used against him at a sentencing proceeding.  During the psychiatric evaluation Defendant made statements and made omission pertaining to the details of the crime.  At the penalty phase of the trial, which was bifurcated from the case in chief, the prosecution called the psychologist who did the pre-trial evaluation to testify about defendant’s dangerousness, that he was a sociopath.  His conclusion and testimony was based on a ninety-minute mental status exam set up by the court.  The psychologist was the only witness called by the state on the issue of “future dangerousness” at the capital case penalty phase.  The Defense presented no psychiatric evidence at the penalty phase.
Issue:  Whether the testimony of the court orchestrated psychiatric experts at the penalty phase violated the defendant’s Fifth Amendment privilege against compelled self-incrimination because defendant was not advised before the pre-trial psychiatric examination that he had a right to remain silent and that any statements he made could be used against him at his sentencing proceeding? (Issue here was introduction at the penalty phase of the results of an involuntary, un-mirandized pretrial psychiatric examination.)
Holding:  “A criminal defendant, who neither initiates a psychiatric evaluation nor attempts to introduce any psychiatric evidence, may not be compelled to respond to a psychiatrist (court describes the role of the psychiatrist here as like an agent of the State) if his statements can be used against him a capital sentencing proceeding.  Because [defendant] did not voluntarily consent to a pretrial psychiatric examination after being informed of his right to remain silent and the possible use of his statements”, the State could not rely on what he said to find an element that would be used to impose the death penalty against him. At 468.


[bookmark: dabmen_3d2c20be9c0640f0a39e0b2aae84c786]Carter v. Kentucky, 450 U.S. 288(1981) (Justice Stewart) (Rehnquist dissenting)
Facts: The trial court judge refused to give the following jury instruction:  “the defendant is not compelled to testify and the fact that he does not cannot be used as an inference of guilt and should not prejudice him in any way.”
Issue: Is the trial court required to give a no adverse inference instruction in a case where defendant chooses not to testify?
Rule:  Upon request, a defendant who chooses not to testify has a right to receive, upon request, a no adverse influence jury instruction.

[bookmark: dabmci_dee3bdd375ab414c9e90e2d83464d3b3][bookmark: dabmen_dee3bdd375ab414c9e90e2d83464d3b3][bookmark: dabmci_61f847b0d8d54269a529a1169fe90e3b][bookmark: dabmen_61f847b0d8d54269a529a1169fe90e3b]Great Language From the Carter Case: “The Griffin case stands for the proposition that a defendant must pay no court-imposed price for the exercise of his constitutional privilege not to testify.”  Carter v. Kentucky, 450 U.S. 288, 301, 101 S. Ct. 1112, 1119, 67 L. Ed. 2d 241 (1981)


[bookmark: dabmci_a8cb66c2e58948fd9e2ca3d33104b06a][bookmark: dabmen_a8cb66c2e58948fd9e2ca3d33104b06a][bookmark: dabmci_eb122e4a892a4e3495fae32beeb1e16a][bookmark: dabmen_eb122e4a892a4e3495fae32beeb1e16a]Mitchell v. United States, 526 U.S. 454 (1981)
Holding that a trial judge cannot, at sentencing, draw an adverse inference from a defendant’s silence at sentencing/penalty phase in regards to the facts and circumstances of the crime. However the Mitchell Court limited its holding to no “adverse inference” jury instruction pertaining to the facts of the crime, but the Mitchell opinion expressed reservation about a blanket instruction in regards to lack of remorse and acceptance of responsibility pertaining to downward departures at sentencing.

[bookmark: dabmen_cebaaa403cad4e7a8bd82cf7669b78c1]White v. Woodall, 134 S. Ct. 1697(2014) (Scalia; joined by Roberts, Kennedy, Thomas, Alito; and Kagan) (Bryer Dissent; joined by Ginsburg and Sotomayor).
Facts: Defendant pleads guilty to the court while pending trial for a brutal rape and capital murder.  During the penalty phase of the case Defendant invoked the 5th and did not testify.  Defendant requested a “no adverse inference” jury instruction in regards to his not testifying during the penalty phase.  The court denied the request.  
Issue:  Did the court’s refusal to give the “no adverse inference” jury instruction at the penalty phase violate the Defendant’s 5th Amendment right against self-incrimination and amount to a state court’s unreasonable application of Supreme Court law?
Holding: The Supreme Court holding did not directly address the issue of the court not giving the “no adverse inference
 jury instruction” to the defendant, rather they held it was not an unreasonable application of federal law ( The state court’s ruling being presented in federal court was so lacking in justification that there was an error well understood and comprehended in existing law beyond any possibility for  fair-minded disagreement) for the state trial court judge to refuse to give the instruction. The dicta in this case discusses how there is not blanket rule in regards to a requirement of a “no adverse inference jury instruction” to every penalty phase trial.

Arizona Voluntariness Statute

[bookmark: dabmen_777a3f126dd746f0bca496c67657a60a]Ariz. Rev. Stat. 13-3988. Admissibility of Confessions. 
A. In any criminal prosecution brought by the state, a confession shall be admissible in evidence if it is voluntarily given. Before such confession is received in evidence, the trial judge shall, out of the presence of the jury, determine any issue as to voluntariness. If the trial judge determines that the confession was voluntarily made it shall be admitted in evidence and the trial judge shall permit the jury to hear relevant evidence on the issue of voluntariness and shall instruct the jury to give such weight to the confession as the jury feels it deserves under all the circumstances.
B. The trial judge in determining the issue of voluntariness shall take into consideration all the circumstances surrounding the giving of the confession, including but not limited to the following:
1. The time elapsing between arrest and arraignment of the defendant making the confession, if it was made after arrest and before arraignment.
2. Whether such defendant knew the nature of the offense with which he was charged or of which he was suspected at the time of making the confession.
3. Whether or not such defendant was advised or knew that he was not required to make any statement and that any such statement could be used against him.
4. Whether or not such defendant had been advised prior to questioning of his right to the assistance of counsel.
5. Whether or not such defendant was without the assistance of counsel when questioned and when giving such confession. The presence or absence of any of the factors indicated in paragraphs 1 through 5 of this subsection which are taken into consideration by the judge need not be conclusive on the issue of voluntariness of the confession.
C. Nothing contained in this section shall bar the admission in evidence of any confession made or given voluntarily by any person to any other person without interrogation by anyone, or at any time at which the person who made or gave such confession was not under arrest or other detention. As used in this section, the term "confession" means any confession of guilt of any criminal offense or any self-incriminating statement made or given orally or in writing.

Voluntariness: What’s Allowed

[bookmark: dabmen_c1b3c1905ee74568a76115f1bb64fbd6]Bram v. United States, 168 U.S. 532 (1897) (Justice White) (Brewer dissenting)
In federal cases where the issue is voluntariness of a confession the analysis is governed by the 5th Amendment requirement that no person “shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself.” 
Facts:  Bram was in-custody for a murder aboard an American ship he was a crew member of and taken in irons to Halifax, Nova Scotia where he was interrogated by Halifax police. The Court conducted a voluntariness hearing, and the state’s witness said there were no promises of leniency or threats made during the interrogation.  The defense claimed the statement obtained was involuntary because among other it was an incommunicado interrogation where he was strip searched, and informed that a co-suspect had seen him commit the murder.
Analysis:  The court in Bram spent quite a bit of time discussing how the use of “hope & fear” during an interrogation impact the voluntariness of a confession.  The court also discusses the “totality of the circumstances.”
Holding:  A confession to be voluntary must not be obtained by “any sort of threats or violence, nor obtained by any direct or implied promises, however slight, nor by the exertion of any improper influence.”  At 542 -543. (Internal citation omitted.) 

[bookmark: dabmen_093796ff81f343d8b02bc3b909b2fa2c]Brown v. Mississippi, 297 U.S. 278 (1936) (Justice Hughes)
Use of Physical Torture to Obtain a Confession violates the due process clause of the 14th Amendment.
Facts: Defendants admitted to murder only after they were tortured by law enforcement – law enforcement admitted to the use of torture.
Issue:  Whether confessions shown to have been extorted by officers of the state by brutality and violence violate the due process clause of the 14th amendment?
Holding: Confessions based on physical coercion by government agents violates the Due Process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.  This is the seminal case on confessions.  Brown’s conclusion was not based on the 5th Amendment, rather the 14th Amendment.

[bookmark: dabmci_b96d3c06332748699668f6ee27148550][bookmark: dabmen_b96d3c06332748699668f6ee27148550]Brown Note:  This was the case in which SCOTUS held that the Due Process Clause prohibits the states from useing an accused’s coerced confession against him. The Court said that it’s conclusion did not involve the privilege against self-incrmination in light of Twining v. New Jersey, 211 U.S. 78 (1908) (Holding that 5th Amendment privilege agains self-incrimination was not incorporate by the 14th Amendment.), which was later overruled by Malloy v. Hogan.

[bookmark: dabmen_de0d25084a864dd99cb6ae806c99954f]Brown v. Mississippi Torture Language
Warning the language in excerpt below is highly offensive and archaic.
The crime, with which these defendants, all ignorant Negroes, are charged, was discovered about 1 o'clock p.m. on Friday, March 30, 1934. On that night one Dial, a deputy sheriff, accompanied by others, came to the home of Ellington, one of the defendants, and requested him to accompany them to the house of the deceased, and there a number of white men were gathered, who began to accuse the defendant of the crime. Upon his denial they seized him, and with the participation of the deputy they hanged him by a rope to the limb of a tree, and, having let him down, they hung him again, and when he was let down the second time, and he still protested his innocence, he was tied to a tree and whipped, and, still declining to accede to the demands that he confess, he was finally released, and he returned with some difficulty to his home, suffering intense pain and agony. The record of the testimony shows that the signs of the rope on his neck were plainly visible during the so-called trial. A day or two thereafter the said deputy, accompanied by another, returned to the home of the said defendant and arrested him, and departed with the prisoner towards the jail in an adjoining county, but went by a route which led into the state of Alabama; and while on the way, in that state, the deputy stopped and again severely whipped the defendant, declaring that he would continue the whipping until he confessed, and the defendant then agreed to confess to such a statement as the deputy would dictate, and he did so, after which he was delivered to jail.
[bookmark: co_tempAnchor]‘The other two defendants, Ed Brown and Henry Shields, were also arrested and taken to the same jail. On Sunday night, April 1, 1934, the same deputy, accompanied by a number of white men, one of whom was also an officer, and by the jailer, came to the jail, and the two last named defendants were made to strip and they were laid over chairs and their backs were cut to pieces with a leather strap with buckles on it, and they were likewise made by the said deputy definitely to understand that the whipping would be continued unless and until they confessed, and not only confessed, but confessed in every matter of detail as demanded by those present; and in this manner the defendants confessed the crime, and, as the whippings progressed and were repeated, they changed or adjusted their confession in all particulars of detail so as to conform to the demands of their torturers. When the confessions had been obtained in the exact form and contents as desired by the mob, they left with the parting admonition and warning that, if the defendants changed their story at any time in any respect from that last stated, the perpetrators of the outrage would administer the same or equally effective treatment.

Bronw Note: This “was the first case in which the Supreme Court held that the Due Process Clause prohibited the  States from using  the accused’s corerced confession against him.” Malloy at 1491.

[bookmark: dabmen_a85b08fb4e794696a064d37e78ef2169]Chambers v. Florida, 309 U.S. 227 (1940) (Justice Black) 
Coercion Can be both Mental and Physical
Facts: Defendants, African –Americans, were subjected to repeated questioning for five days, about the murder of an elderly white man, which cause an angry mob to form in the community, demanding justice for his death. During that period they were mistreated, physically threatened, subjected to all-night interrogations, and were not given the opportunity to see family, friends, or legal counsel. 
Issue: Was the procedural due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment violated?
[bookmark: dabmci_913c7ddd02ef4432b33159f7b216a423][bookmark: dabmen_913c7ddd02ef4432b33159f7b216a423]Holding: The Court held that circumstances of the confessions violated Due Process under the Fourteenth Amendment. “[P] rotracted question and cross questioning of these ignorant young tenant farmers by State officers and white citizens, in a fourth floor jail room, where as prisoners they were without friends, advisers or counselors, and under circumstances calculated to break the strongest nerves and the stoutest resistance.  Just as our decision in Brown v. Mississippi was based upon the fact that the confessions were the result of compulsion, so in the present case, the admitted practices were such as justify the statement that ‘The undisputed facts showed that compulsion applied.’” At 478.   “To permit human lives to be forfeited upon confessions thus obtained would make of the constitutional requirement of due process of law a meaningless symbol.” At 479.




 Excerpt of Chamber’s Voluntariness Testimony
Q: What he freely and voluntarily told you in the way of a confession at that time, it wasn't what you wanted? A. It didn't make up like it should.
‘Q. What matter didn't make up? A. There was some things he told us that couldn't possible be true.
‘Q. What did Mr. Maire say about it at that time; did you hear Mr. Maire say at this time ‘tear this paper up, that isn't what I want, when you get something worth while call me,’ or words to that effect? A. Something similar to that.
‘Q. That did happen that night? A. Yes, sir.
‘Q. That was in the presence of Walter Woodward? A. Yes, sir.’
And petitioner 
Woodward testified on this subject as follows:
‘A.  I was taken out several times on the night of the 20th * * * So I still denied it. 
‘A. He said I had told lies and kept him sitting up all the week and he was tired and if I didn't come across I would never see the sun rise.

‘A. … then I was taken back to the private cell. … and shortly after that they come back, shortly after that, twenty or twenty-five minutes, and bring me out…. I (told Williams) if he would send for the State attorney he could take down what I said, I said send for him and I will tell him what I know. So he sent for Mr. Maire some time during Saturday night, must have been around one or two o'clock in the night, it was after midnight, and so he sent for Mr. Maire, I didn't know Mr. Maire then, but I know him now by his face.
‘A. Well he come in and said ‘this boy got something to tell me’ and Captain Williams says ‘yes, he is ready to tell you…. Mr. Maire had a pen and a book to take down what I told him, which he said had to be on the typewriter, but I didn't see any typewriter, I saw him with a pen and book, so whether it was shorthand or regular writing I don't know, but he took it down with pen. After I told him my story he said it was no good, and he tore it up. 
‘Q. What was it Mr. Maire said? A. He told them it wasn't no good, when they got something out of me he would be back. It was late he had to go back and go to bed.
‘A. I wasn't in the cell long before they come back. 
‘Q. How long was that from the time you was brought into that room until Mr. Maire left there? A. Something like two or three hours, I guess, because it was around sunrise when I went into the room.
‘Q. Had you slept any that night, Walter? A. No, sir. I was walked all night, not continually, but I didn't have no time to sleep except in short spaces of the night.

‘Q. When Mr. Maire got there it was after daylight? A. Yes, sir.
‘Q. Why did you say to them that morning anything after you were brought into the room? A. Because I was scared
At 233.

[bookmark: dabmen_6476b8e6825e42f1ae549eae9da016c8]Towsend v. Sain, 372 U.S. 293 (1963) (Justice Warren)
Facts: The nineteen-year-old Defendant was tried and convicted of murder. He had been suffering from withdrawals so he was given a medication, hyoscine,  that also had the properties of a “truth serum.” After receiving the drug, Defendant confessed. His public defender objected to the introduction of his confession on the ground that it was the product of coercion because Defendant did not have free will. This state death penalty case ended up in the Supreme Court via a petition for habeas corpus.  The main issue in this certiorari petition was whether or not the courts below had correctly applied the standards governing hearings in federal habeas corpus proceedings.
Issue: Was Defendant’s will overborne by the government when the confession was obtained or was his confession not the proeuct of rational intellect and a free will?
Holding: The Court held that if an individual's will was overborne or if his confession was not the product of a rational intellect and a free will, his confession was inadmissible because it was coerced. The Supreme Court repeatedly reinforced that the standard governing the admissibility of confessions is, “[if] an individual's ‘will was overborne’ or if his confession was not "the product of a rational intellect and a free will," his confession is inadmissible because coerced.” At. 307. A confession cannot be a druginduced statement.

[bookmark: dabmen_34a90d0bdabc4689865f307b8a124340]Malloy v. Hogan, 378 U.S. 1 (1964) (Justice Brennan)
Application of the 5th Amendment’s Self-Incrimination Clause to the States
Facts:  Defendant was ordered to testify in a state proceeding but refused, citing his privilege against self-incrimination. He was jailed for contempt and brought habeas corpus proceedings on the issue of the applicability of the 5th to the states.
[bookmark: dabmci_7787bfbee57c49a099abc60e8ca24654][bookmark: dabmen_7787bfbee57c49a099abc60e8ca24654]Holding: The Court held that Fifth Amendment Self-Incrimination Clause is incorporated in the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment and thus applies to the States.  (Overuled Twining v. New Jersey, 211 U.S. 78 (1908)).

[bookmark: dabmen_fb697553e81046adb0ac9e474fa9d9a3]Arizona v. Fulminante, 499 U.S. 279 (1991) (Justice White)
Harmless Error Analysis for Confession Issues
[bookmark: sp_999_3][bookmark: SDU_3]Facts: Arizona law officials suspected that Fulminante murdered his stepdaughter. He was later arrested in New York for an unrelated crime and incarcerated. While in prison, he became friends with Anthony Sarivola, an inmate paid by the FBI to collect information on other inmates while he served his term. Fulminante initially denied killing his stepdaughter to Sarivola, but admitted it when Sarivola offered him protection from other inmates in exchange for the truth. After his release, Fulminante also confessed to Donna Sarivola, Anthony's wife. Fulminante was indicted for murder in Arizona. Fulminante argued in trial court that his two confessions to the Sarivolas could not be used as evidence since the first was coerced and the second based on the first.
Holding: The Court held that the confession was coerced and that the state failed to meet its burden of establishing, beyond a reasonable doubt, that the admission of the confession was harmless error. Defendant faced a credible threat of violence unless he confessed. Admission of a coerced confession does not automatically require reversal of a conviction but is subject to harmless error analysis because it involves a trial error that can be assessed in the context of other evidence. 

[bookmark: dabmen_5434a8dadd58431684179936776755d7]Jackson v. Denno, 378 U.S. 368(1964) (Justice White) (Justice Clark, Harland & Stewart dissented; Black  dissented in part)
Facts:  Jackson killed a police officer and was shot in the liver and lung during the shootout. The shootout took place at 1 a.m., Jackson was first interrogagted by police at 2 a.m., he was given demrol at 3:55 a.m., and was then interrogated a second time immediately after the administration of the  drug by a prosecutor.  By the time of the second interrogation he had lost 500 cc’s of blood. During the second interrogation he said, “look I can’t go on”, but the questioning continued. Upon further questioning Jackson admitted firing first. Both of Jackson’s statements were admitted at trial without objection from the defense.  Jackon testified that he was in pain and gasping for breath while being questioned at the hospital. He also testified that he was refused water, and was “told he would not be let alone until the police had the answers they wanted.” The testimony offered by the State concerning voluntariness was contrary to Jackson’s, as a witness for the prosecution described him as “in strong condition despite his wound.” The New York practice at the time was for the trial court to submit questions of voluntariness of a confession to the jury. The Trial Court told the jury if they found the confession involuntary they should disregard it.
Holding: Due process under the 14th Amendment requires that the volunariness of a confession be determined by the court prior to the admission of a confession to a the jury which is abjudicating guilt or innocence. In dicta, the Court the court reminds us that the question in voluntariness of confession cases is ‘whether an accused’s will has been overborne.”

[bookmark: dabmen_714255d1846544d99dc099a0f27bdeec]Lego v. Twomey, 404 U.S. 477 (1972) (Justice White) (Justice Brennan dissented, joined by Douglas & Justice Marshall)
[bookmark: dabmci_377d78f9b467401ab3f6bad885b3e20d][bookmark: dabmen_377d78f9b467401ab3f6bad885b3e20d]This case follows the holding of Jackson v. Denno that a court, not a jury should determine the voluntariness of a confession
Facts:  Lego testified at a volutariness hearing that the police had beaten him in order to obtain a confession. He did not  deny  he made the confession, his  challenge was that it was made voluntarily.  He introduced pictures at the voluntariness hearing that depicted a his face swollen a bloodied after the arrest.  The state theory was that the blood and swelling was cause by a scuffle with the victim pre-arrest, and police officers testified that the Lego was not beaten, nor was he threatned.  The State law was that a confession could be admitted into evidence if, at a hearing outside the presence of the jury, the trial  judge found it voluntary by a preponderance of the evidence. The trial judge did not instruct the jury that they were required to find the confession voluntary as a prerequisite to using it to find guilt or innocence.
Holding:  The prosecution must prove by a preponderance of the evidence that a confession is voluntary.” At 489. SCOTUS also held that after voluntariness of a confession decided by a judge, a defendant  is not entiled to “have the jury decide the claim anew.” At 489.


[bookmark: dabmen_cea2c45a034b42d3ba6b0bdf9ba1e62f]Wainwright v. Sykes, 433 U.S. 72 (1977) (Justice Rehnquist)
Facts:  Sykes waived his Miranda rights and confessed to a murder. There was unrefuted testimony of Sykes drinking binge the day prior to the murder and that he was intoxicated when he came into contact with the police, but his lawyer never challenged he voluntariness of his waiver of Miranda rights, and the trial judge never questioned the admissibility of Defendant’s statements.  The state of Florida had a procedural rule requiring a Defendant to make motions to suppress evidence prior to trial. The Defendant never made an objection to his confession prior to it’s admission into evidence.
Holding:  The Constitution does not require a voluntariness hearing absent some contemporaneous challenge to the use of a confession.  At 85.  The Florida procedure requiering the challenge to the admission of a confession at trial was constitutional.

[bookmark: dabmen_59bcd4bfeeb14d48af6e4d6ee0952277]Mincey v. Arizona, 437 U.S. 385 (1978) (Justice Stewart) (Justice Marshall concurring, joined  by Brennan)(Chief Justice Rhenquist concurring in part and dissenting in part)
Facts: Defendant was arrested during a drug raid in his apartment; one of the officers was shot and killed and Defendant was wounded. Later at the hospital, Defendant was questioned by a detective. Defendant told the detective he was in pain, weak, could not think, and asked for a lawyer but eventually made an incriminating statement.  Mincey’s statements were found to be voluntary by the court in a pretrial hearing. He subsequently testified at trial and was allowed to be impeached, pursuant to Harris v. New York, with the confession he gave from his hospital bed.  The Arizona Court of Appeals found a Miranda violation, but that Mincey was properly impeached because of the trial courts voluntariness finding.
Holding: The Court held that Defendant’s statements had not been the product of rational intellect and free will. The Court explained that “[d]etermination of whether a statement is involuntary ‘requires more than a mere color-matching of cases.’ It requires careful evaluation of all the circumstances of the interrogation.” At. 401 (citations omitted).
Rule: To be voluntary, a confession must be the “product of rational intellect and free will.”

Mincey Excerpt
[bookmark: dabmci_46fa8e0912b04856bc6e8acee2701464][bookmark: dabmen_46fa8e0912b04856bc6e8acee2701464]It is hard to imagine a situation less conducive to the exercise of “a rational intellect and a free will” than Mincey's. He had been seriously wounded just a few hours earlier, and had arrived at the hospital “depressed almost to the point of coma,” according to his attending physician. Although he had received some treatment, his condition at the time of Hust's interrogation was still sufficiently serious that he was in the intensive care unit.14 He complained to Hust that the pain in his leg was “unbearable.” He was evidently confused and unable to think clearly about either the events of that afternoon or the circumstances of his interrogation, since some *399 of his written answers were on their face not entirely coherent.15 Finally, while Mincey was being questioned he was lying on his back on a hospital bed, encumbered by tubes, needles, and breathing apparatus. He was, in short, “at the complete mercy” of Detective Hust, unable to escape or resist the thrust of Hust's interrogation. Cf. Beecher v. Alabama, 389 U.S. 35, 38, 88 S.Ct. 189, 191, 19 L.Ed.2d 35.
In this debilitated and helpless condition, Mincey clearly expressed his wish not to be interrogated. As soon as Hust's questions turned to the details of the afternoon's events, Mincey wrote: “This is all I can say without a lawyer.” Hust nonetheless continued to question him, and a nurse who was present suggested it would be best if Mincey answered. Mincey gave unresponsive or uninformative answers to several more questions, and then said again that he did not want to talk without a lawyer. Hust ignored that request and another made immediately thereafter. Indeed, throughout the interrogation Mincey vainly asked Hust to desist. Moreover, he complained several times that he was confused or unable to think clearly, or that he could answer more accurately the next day. But despite Mincey's entreaties to be let alone, Hust ceased the interrogation only during intervals when Mincey lost consciousness or received medical treatment, and after each such interruption returned relentlessly to his task. The statements at issue were thus the result of virtually continuous questioning of a seriously and painfully wounded man on the edge of consciousness. At 398-401.

“Mincey was weakened  by pain, shock, isolated from family, friends, and legal counsel, and barely counscious, and his will was simply overborne. Due process of law requires that statements obtained as these were cannot be used in any way against a defendant at his trial. At 399. 

[bookmark: dabmen_e28c4d2312264489b92f0a3aafcd0dc6]Miller v. Fenton, 474 U.S. 104(1985) (Justice O’Connor; Burger, Brennan, White, Marshall, Balackmun, Stevens Joined; Justice Renquist dissenting)
Defendnat confessed to muder and filed a write of habeas corpus.
[bookmark: dabmen_95075a2671864b7f88df7db8cb86f9f0]Moran v. Burbine, 475 U.S. 412 (1986)

[bookmark: dabmen_d69bce4b483c4de58875ce1212c8de89]Colorado v. Connelly, 479 U.S. 157 (1986) (Chief Justice Rehnquist)
State of Mind of Defendant Not Relevant to Voluntariness Analysis
Facts: On August 18, 1983, Francis Connelly (Defendant) stopped a police officer and spontaneously confessed to the murder of a young girl. Connelly had a history of mental illness and had gone off his medication six months before. The officer gave Connelly Miranda warnings, and Connelly continued the confession and led police to the crime scene. Connelly appeared competent to the officers. During a meeting with an attorney the next day, Connelly was confused and claimed voices told him to confess. Doctors found Connelly incompetent to aid his defense, but Connelly later regained competence to stand trial. Connelly moved to suppress his confession, and a psychiatrist testified that Connelly suffered from chronic schizophrenia and psychotic states that impeded his free will.
Holding: The Court held that absent police coercion, Defendant's confession was not barred by either Miranda or the Due Process Clause. The Court held that “[C]oercive police activity is a necessary predicate to the finding that a confession is not ‘voluntary’ within the meaning of the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment [and] that the taking of respondent’s statements, and their admission into evidence, constitute no violation of that Clause.” At 167.

[bookmark: dabmen_c0f94e7a1cad4450839a608e95908061][bookmark: dabmci_7ba656db29d74db884b95361a39480bf][bookmark: dabmen_7ba656db29d74db884b95361a39480bf]Doody v. Ryan, 649 F.3d 986 (9th Cir. 2011), cert. denied, 132 U.S. 414 (2011).
Facts: Defendant, a 17 year old juvenile, he was approached by police at a high school event and voluntarily went with them to the police station. After arriving at the police stateion he was interrogated overnight, for over 12 hours  by multiple police officers.   Before the interrogation, officers gave Defendant his rights, but the officer’s recitation of rights consumed 12 pages of transcript because the detective used lots of qualifying language. The officer downplayed the significance of the warnings, and implied that the right to counsel was only available if the individual was questioned for having committed a crime.
[bookmark: dabmci_d2434930f71449d79fd57d87d6b04e32][bookmark: dabmen_d2434930f71449d79fd57d87d6b04e32]Holding: When evaluated against clearly established Supreme Court precedent, the Miranda warnings were constitutionally deficient. At a minimum Doody was never clearly and reasonably informed he had a right to counsel.”  At 1003.” The Court in its  analysis distinguishes the facts of the Doody warning from the Duckworth v. Egan warning by pointing out that Duckworth did not involve a juvenile defendant, the officers did not deviate from the printed form with inaccurate and garbled elaborations, there was no downplaying of the significance of the warnings, and there was no implication that the right to counsel was available only if the individual being questioned had committed the crime.  Doody at 1004.
Doody Miranda Warning Excerpt: “Ah, what I’d like to do first though  Jonathan since we’re in kind of a formal setting like that and because DAVE [Munley] a police officer and I’m a police officer and things like that ah sometimes some of the questions that we get into are, are a little bit sensitive and ah things like that. Ah, and what I’d like to do is is before we, we go into that is ah, read something to you ah, and so that you understand of the some of the protections and things that ah, that you have. It not meant to scare youor anything like that, ah, don’t ah, don’t take it out of context, okay.”
[bookmark: dabmci_557f2231b80b48e7882a0a47557df61e][bookmark: dabmen_557f2231b80b48e7882a0a47557df61e]State Court Findings: In its analysis of the adequacy of the Mrianda warnings, the Arizona Court of Appeals concluded that “the officers advised Doody of his Miranda rights in a clear and understandable manner and that Doody made and knowing and intelligent waiver. Doody, 930 P.2d at 449.
[bookmark: dabmen_5dda31989e664693a8d2c39e76cc626b]State v. Tapia, 159 Ariz. 284 (Ariz. 1988)
Facts: Defendant denied any involvement during the initial investigation of a murder. Later, after unrelated assault charges, an officer brought Defendant back to the station so that the detective in the murder case could again interview Defendant. Defendant was Mirandized at the scene of the arrest and acknowledged his Miranda warnings, both at the scene and back at the station. The detective falsely told Defendant that there were other witnesses who had implicated him and threatened Defendant by beginning to fill out a booking form for murder. Defendant eventually broke down and confessed.  
Holding: The court affirmed Defendant’s convictions, finding that after considering the totality of the circumstances, there was no evidence that the prisoner's will was overborne or that his statement was false or unreliable. The court found ample evidence that the police properly informed the prisoner of his Miranda rights and that the prisoner knowingly and intelligently waived his rights so as to render his confessions admissible.

[bookmark: dabmen_96ad1d21f1ce407abe4522bd7d5fb884]State v. Strayhand, 184 Ariz. 571 (Ariz. Ct. App. 1995)
Facts: Defendant was arrested, Mirandized, and interrogated twice after several hours in the jail. During the first interrogation, the officer told Defendant that if he was cooperative he could make recommendations to the prosecutor and that cooperation would help him with his parole officer. The officers told the Defendant that his fingerprints were found in a vehicle used in a robbery when in fact they were not found in the vehicle. After the first interrogation, Defendant claims officers promised not to charge him with the robberies, but the officers denied it. Later, Defendant was later interrogated a second time and confessed.
[bookmark: dabmci_df638cba1f6e4faa89ccdace36c7be15][bookmark: dabmen_df638cba1f6e4faa89ccdace36c7be15][bookmark: dabmci_42d5a3e8652a4ef593071e187566bbbc][bookmark: dabmen_42d5a3e8652a4ef593071e187566bbbc]Holding: The Arizona appellate court held that the state did not meet its burden of showing that the confessions were voluntary. The court found that the detectives' promises and threats to defendant caused him to confess and the trial judge, in considering the evidence, failed to draw a clear distinction between permissible discussion of the possibility of leniency in return for cooperation and impermissible threats. Courts will allow gamesmanship but only so long as they do not overcome a suspect’s will and induce a confession not truly voluntary. At 579 (citing State v. Tapia, 159 Ariz. 284 (Ariz. 1988)). “All confessions are presumed involuntary, and the state bears the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that any confession is voluntary and freely given.” Id. (citing State v. Amaya-Ruiz, 166 Ariz. 152, 164 (Ariz. 1990)). “A confession obtained by any direct or implied promises, however slight, is involuntary.” At 579 (citations omitted).

[bookmark: dabmen_6d8b0293be004cee8695dabda6c399e6]State v. Ross, 180 Ariz. 598, 603 (Ariz. 1994)
Facts: In a murder investigation, police arrested suspect and took him back to the station. They gave him his Miranda warnings and began discussing that his son was a possible suspect. Defendant eventually admitted to having committed the crime. 
[bookmark: dabmci_916446b6b8c04ef1b0d4452ed66d7849][bookmark: dabmen_916446b6b8c04ef1b0d4452ed66d7849]Holding: The court looked at the totality of the circumstances and concluded that the statement was voluntarily given and was not coerced. Police may discuss a relative's criminal liability if they have reasonable grounds to do so. At 603 (citing State v. Ferguson, 119 Ariz. 55, 60 (Ariz. 1978)). 

[bookmark: dabmen_045855c2e76a4c35894b525ecd2b0cf6]State v. Amaya-Ruiz, 166 Ariz. 152, 165 (Ariz. 1990)
Facts: Defendant was an undocumented immigrant farmhand who spoke no English. After the murder of his employer, he was picked up and questioned in Spanish. He was given Miranda warnings, but initially said he didn’t know if he would answer until he heard the questions. He eventually confessed. 
Holding: Confessions are presumed to be involuntary. At 165. The State must prove a confession is voluntary by a preponderance of the evidence. A voluntary confession cannot be induced by a direct or implied promise. 

[bookmark: dabmen_f93325a60a1b4051872512d920ac736c]In Re Andre M., 207 Ariz. 482, 488 (Ariz. 2004)
Facts: After he was involved in a fistfight, the sixteen-year-old Defendant was questioned about a sawed-off shotgun. The principal failed to advise the officers that the mother had requested that she or an administrator be present for any questioning. She came to the school while Defendant was questioned in a room with three officers and was not allowed in. 
Holding: The Arizona Supreme Court held that the evidence of the confession should be suppressed. The court looked at the totality of the circumstances to determine whether the statement was voluntary. While the absence of a parent during the questioning of a juvenile does not itself render a confession involuntary, it is a factor that can be considered. In this case, the State failed to meet its burden to show that Defendant’s statements were voluntary. 

[bookmark: dabmen_12908377c5a5419982e30136f2abc362]In Re Timothy C., 194 Ariz. 159 (Ct. App. 1998)
Facts: CPS caseworker interviewed Defendant regarding alleged sexual assault. Prior to questioning Defendant, the CPS caseworker did not advise Defendant of right to have parent present, of right to remain silent, or that Defendant’s stateents might be used against him in a criminal proceeding.
Holding: In determining whether a juvenile’s statement is voluntary, a court must look to the totality of the circumstances.  A number of factors are considered, including: age, intelligence, education, any advice to the juvenile of constitutional rights, length of detention and questioning, and use of physical force. “Although failure to notify parents of a juvenile’s constitutional rights no longer renders a confession inadmissible per se, parental knowledge of those rights, and consent to waive them, is relevant to the totality of the circumstnaces surrounding the confession.”  In this case, the State failed to overcome the presumption that the juvenile’s confession was involuntary.
[bookmark: dabmen_cf060588aa8c41ce8476b8c9336927dc]State v. Scholtz, 164 Ariz. 187 (Ct. App. 1990)
Facts: Juvenile defendant was questioned about a homicide without a parent present and without consulting his parent or guardian prior to questioning. Defendant made incriminating statements and moved to suppress those statements, arguing that he did not voluntarily waive his Miranda rights.
Holding: The court used the totality of the circumstances test to determine that Defendant did, in fact, waive his Miranda rights.  The totality of the circumstances that a court looks at in determining volutnariness of a Miranda waiver include: the chronological age of the juvenile; the apparent mental age of the juvenile; the educational level of the juvenile; the juvenile’s physical condition; the juvenile’s previous dealings with the police or court appearances; the extent of the explanation of rights; the language of the warnings given; the methods of interrogation; the length of time the juvenile was in custody; whether the juvenile was held incommunicado; whether the juvenile was afforded the opportunity to consult with an adult; the juvenile’s understanding of the offense charged; whether the juvenile was warned of possible transfer to adult court; and whether the juvenile later repudiated the statement.

[bookmark: dabmen_da93eea087644a7a92e946314bf19599]United States v. Preston, 751 F.3d 1008 (9th Cir. 2014)
Facts: Defendant was eighteen years old and had an IQ of 65 (recognized as intellectually disabled). He had linguistic and psychological deficits. In 2009, Preston’s eight-year-old neighbor told authorities that Preston had molested him. A few days later, the FBI questioned Preston about the molestation. Officers were aware of Preston’s mental deficiencies. Preston repeatedly denied having been at the house but the officers continued to pressure him. They told him they didn’t believe him and promised him that that his file would remain confidential with the US Attorney’s Office. 
Holding: The court determined that the confession that had resulted from the questioning was involuntary and should not have been admitted. The court held that “the officers' use of the methods employed here to confuse and compel a confession from the intellectually disabled eighteen-year-old before us produced an involuntary confession.” At 1028. The court looked at the totality of the circumstances: Preston’s severe intellectual impairment, police’s repetitive questioning and the threats that it would continue, the pressure put on Preston, and the false promises.

[bookmark: dabmen_2b9cf52b4cd64f1d88d7a5f4166804ab]State v. Greenberg, 236 Ariz. 592 343 P.3d 462 (App. 2015)  
Facts: Police were called to investigate a residential trespass and given a description of the suspect as well as a license plate number. The officer responded to the suspect’s address, determined that the vehicle at the address matched the reported license plate number, and knocked on the door. Defendant answered the door and matched the description of the suspect. Based upon this information, the officer asked Defendant to accompany him to the police station to speak with a detective. The officer told Defendant “this would all be over for him quickly,” and Defendant agreed to go to the station. At the station the detective read Defendant his Miranda rights, which he waived, and questioned Defendant with the stated belief that Defendant faced misdemeanor trespass and voyeurism charges.  The questioning included the following exchange, which occurred immediately, prior to Defendant’s confession:
Defendant: And if I did say anything, then who—I mean, what—so—can you tell me what would happen? I'd go sit in a jail cell till tomorrow morning?
Det.: That's possible.
Defendant: Would it be any longer than that?
Det.: It's possible. It's possible that—it's possible that you could be charged with a crime, a misdemeanor, and have to see a judge in the morning. That's possible.
Holding: The Arizona Court of Appeals rejected Defendant’s argument that the detective’s “implied promise” that Defendant would be charged with only a misdemeanor rendered Defendant’s resulting confession involuntary. Although the court noted that the detective’s tactics were “close to the line,” it ultimately concluded that the alleged promise was couched in terms of mere possibility or opinion and thus insufficient to render the confession involuntary. It also noted that “a defendant’s ignorance of the full consequences of his decisions does not vitiate the voluntariness of his statements.”
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